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Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

As of September 8, 2011, CapLease, Inc. (the “Company”) has completed the previously announced sale of its March
2005 collateralized debt obligation transaction (“CDO”).  The CDO sale, which generated total cash proceeds excluding
accrued interest of approximately $30.2 million, primarily included the transfer of the assets and liabilities comprising
the CDO transaction to an affiliate of NorthStar Realty Finance Corp.  It also included the prepayment of three
cross-collateralized first mortgage loans by the borrower.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

The following pro forma financial information is filed as part of this report.

(b) Pro forma financial information

The unaudited pro forma financial statements set forth:

• the Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet (unaudited) as of June 30, 2011;

• the Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (unaudited) for the year ended December 31,
2010;

• the Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (unaudited) for the six months ended June 30,
2011; and

• the notes to Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of June 30, 2011 assumes the sale
of the Company’s March 2005 collateralized debt obligation (the “CDO”) was consummated on June 30, 2011.  The
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the
six months ended June 30, 2011 assume the sale of the CDO occurred on January 1, 2010.  The pro forma condensed
consolidated financial statements do not purport to represent what the Company’s financial position or results of
operations would have been if the sale had been consummated as of the dates indicated, nor do they purport to project
the Company’s financial position or results of operations at any future date or for any future period.  These pro forma
condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s 2010 historical
financial statements as included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, and
its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011.

The pro forma financial statements are based upon assumptions contained in the notes thereto and should be read in
conjunction with such notes.
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CapLease, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

June 30, 2011
(Unaudited, in thousands)

CapLease, Inc.
Historical

Pro Forma
Adjustments

CapLease, Inc.
Pro Forma

Assets
Real estate investments, net $ 1,408,133 $ – $ 1,408,133
Loans held for investment, net 187,047 (151,317 ) a 35,730
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 102,369 (41,187 ) a 61,182
Cash and cash equivalents 67,452 29,791 a 97,243
Other assets 109,997 (32,780 ) a 77,217
Total Assets $ 1,874,998 $ (195,493 ) $ 1,679,505
Liabilities and Equity
Mortgages on real estate investments $ 954,170 $ 31,331 a $ 985,501
Collateralized debt obligations 232,511 (232,511 ) a –
Credit agreement 80,388 (5,471 ) a 74,917
Secured term loan 94,428 94,428
Convertible senior notes 34,217 34,217
Other long-term debt 30,930 30,930
Total Debt Obligations 1,426,644 (206,651 ) 1,219,993
Intangible liabilities on real estate investments 36,312 36,312
Accounts payable and other liabilities 21,118 (1,867 ) a 19,251
Dividends and distributions payable 6,061 6,061
Total Liabilities 1,490,135 (208,518 ) 1,281,617
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares
authorized, Series A cumulative redeemable preferred,
liquidation preference $25.00 per share, 3,204,900 shares
issued and outstanding 73,880 73,880
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares
authorized, 68,055,665 shares issued and outstanding 682 682
Additional paid in capital 335,685 (2,371 ) a 333,314
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (26,512 ) 15,396 a (11,116 )
Total Stockholders' Equity 383,735 13,025 396,760
Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 1,128 1,128
Total Equity 384,863 13,025 397,888
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 1,874,998 $ (195,493 ) $ 1,679,505
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CapLease, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2010
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share data)

CapLease,
Inc.

Historical

Pro
Forma

Adjustments

CapLease,
Inc.
Pro

Forma
Revenues:
Rental revenue $125,662 $– $125,662
Interest income
from loans and
securities 27,620 (17,185)  b 10,435
Tenant
reimbursements 12,159 12,159
Other revenue 974 974
Total revenues 166,415 (17,185) 149,230
Expenses:
Interest expense 84,850 (12,015)  b 72,835
Property
expenses 24,715 24,715
Loss on
investments 7,949 7,949
General and
administrative
expenses 10,659 10,659
General and
administrative
expenses-stock
based
compensation 2,541 2,541
Depreciation
and
amortization
expense on real
property 48,409 48,409
Other expenses 268 (181
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addition, given the significant investments that we have made in the past in property, plant, and equipment, depreciation and amortization expenses represent a meaningful portion of our cost structure. We believe that disclosing EBITDA from continuing operations provides investors with a useful tool for assessing the comparability between periods of our ability to generate cash from operations sufficient to pay taxes, to service debt, and to undertake capital expenditures because it eliminates depreciation and amortization expense. We present EBITDA from continuing operations in order to provide supplemental information that we consider relevant for the readers of the consolidated financial statements, and such information is not meant to replace or supersede U.S. GAAP measures.

Moreover, under the credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facilities and the indenture governing the existing notes, our ability to engage in certain activities, such as incurring certain additional indebtedness, making certain investments, and paying certain dividends, is tied to ratios based on Adjusted EBITDA (which is defined as �Consolidated EBITDA� in the credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facilities and �EBITDA� in the indenture governing our existing notes). Adjusted EBITDA is not defined under U.S. GAAP and is subject to important limitations. We have included the calculations of Adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented.

Because not all companies use identical calculations, our presentation of EBITDA from continuing operations and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. EBITDA from continuing operations and Adjusted EBITDA have important limitations as analytical tools, and investors should not consider them in isolation or as substitutes for analysis of our results as reported under U.S. GAAP. For example, EBITDA from continuing operations and Adjusted EBITDA:

� exclude certain tax obligations that may represent a reduction in cash available to us;

� do not reflect any cash capital expenditure requirements for the assets being depreciated and amortized that may have to be replaced in the future;

� do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs; and

� do not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements, necessary to service our debt interest and principal payments.
In calculating Adjusted EBITDA, we add back certain non-cash, non-recurring, and other items that are included in EBITDA from continuing operations and consolidated net income, as required by various covenants in the credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facilities and the indenture governing our existing notes. Adjusted EBITDA, among other things:

� does not include non-cash stock-based employee compensation expense and certain other non-cash charges;

� does not include cash and non-cash restructuring, severance, and relocation costs incurred to realize future cost savings and enhance our operations;

� adds back noncontrolling interest expense, which represents the minority investors� ownership of certain of our consolidated subsidiaries and is therefore not available to us; and

� includes estimated cost savings that have not yet been fully reflected in our results.
In applying Adjusted EBITDA to determine our ability to engage in the activities described above under the credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facilities and the indenture governing our existing notes, we are permitted to make further pro forma adjustments. Adjusted EBITDA, as presented on a pro forma basis, is based on the definitions in the credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facilities and in the indenture governing the existing notes, is not defined under U.S. GAAP, and is subject to important limitations.

S-10

Edgar Filing: CapLease, Inc. - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 5



Table of Contents

In calculating Adjusted EBITDA, on a pro forma basis, we give pro forma effect to the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period presented. Certain of these pro forma effects are based on estimates and assumptions, all of which we believe we have a reasonable basis for and are subject to change. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

As exchange rates are an important factor in understanding period-to-period comparisons, we believe the presentation of results on a constant currency basis in addition to reported results helps improve investors� ability to understand our operating results and evaluate our performance in comparison to prior periods. Constant currency information compares results between periods as if exchange rates had remained constant period-over-period. We use results on a constant currency basis as one measure to evaluate our performance. In this prospectus supplement, we calculate constant currency by calculating current-year results using prior-year foreign currency exchange rates. We generally refer to such amounts calculated on a constant currency basis as excluding the impact of foreign exchange. These results should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, results reported in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Results on a constant currency basis, as we present them, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies and are not measures of performance presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Unless specifically indicated, our results presented in this prospectus supplement, including EBITDA from continuing operations, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted Net Income, on both the historical and pro forma bases are provided taking the impact of foreign exchange into account and not on a constant currency basis.

A reconciliation of earnings/(loss) from continuing operations, the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measure, to EBITDA from continuing operations and Adjusted EBITDA, on a historical and pro forma basis, is as follows:

Pro Forma Fiscal
Year Ended
June 30, Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2017 2017 2016 2015

(dollars in millions) (unaudited)
Earnings from continuing operations(a) $ 224.6 $ 109.8 $ 111.2 $ 210.2
Interest expense, net(a) 122.6 90.1 88.5 105.0
Income tax expense/(benefit)(a)(b)(c) (103.4) 25.8 33.7 (97.7) 
Depreciation and amortization(a) 181.5 146.5 140.6 140.8
Noncontrolling interest �  �  0.3 1.9

EBITDA from continuing operations 425.3 372.2 374.3 360.2
Equity compensation 20.9 20.9 10.8 9.0
Impairment charges and loss on sale of assets 9.8 9.8 2.7 4.7
Financing related expenses and other 4.3 4.3 �  21.8
U.S. GAAP Restructuring and other 8.0 8.0 9.0 13.4
Acquisition, integration and other special items 22.9 25.6 18.2 13.8
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) (included in other, net)(d) 9.6 9.6 (10.5) (2.7) 
Other adjustments(e)(f) 3.7 (0.4) (3.3) 22.9

Adjusted EBITDA $ 504.5 $ 450.0(3) $ 401.2 $ 443.1

(a) Pro forma earnings, interest, depreciation and amortization and income tax are from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements included in the section entitled �Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements� in this prospectus supplement.

(b) The adjustment due to income tax expense/(benefit) represents the amount of income tax-related expense recorded within our net earnings that may not result in cash payment or receipt.
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(c) Cook Pharmica recorded an income tax benefit of $110.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2017. However, this income tax benefit is not representative of the income tax for Cook Pharmica going forward because Cook Pharmica will not retain the associated deferred tax asset after the Acquisition.

(d) For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, foreign exchange losses/(gains) of $9.6 million, $(10.5) million, and $(2.7) million, respectively, included $7.8 million, $(16.3) million, and $(16.4) million, respectively, of unrealized foreign currency exchange rate losses/(gains). For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015 such losses/gains were primarily driven by gains of $13.2 million, gains of $9.0 million, and losses of $31.4 million, respectively, related to inter-company loans denominated in a currency different from the functional currency of either the borrower or the lender and losses of $21.3 million, gains of $3.8 million, and gains of $47.8 million, respectively, due to the ineffective portion of the net investment hedge related to our euro-denominated debt. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the foreign exchange adjustment was also affected by the exclusion of realized foreign currency exchange rate losses from the non-cash and cash settlement of inter-company loans of $1.8 million, $5.8 million, and $13.7 million, respectively. Inter-company loans are between our entities and do not reflect the ongoing results of our consolidated operations.

(e) Other adjustments for fiscal 2015 include $29.8 million for a sponsor advisory agreement termination fee paid in connection with the initial public offering of our common stock.

(f) Other adjustments for fiscal 2017, on a pro forma basis, primarily include certain operating expense reductions related to historical corporate allocations and supply agreements with the parent company of Cook Pharmica that are not expected to continue after the Acquisition.

(3) On a constant currency basis, Adjusted EBITDA for fiscal 2017 was $468.9 million, after adjusting for an unfavorable impact of $18.9 million from currency exchange rates.

(4) Management also measures operating performance based on Adjusted Net Income/(loss). Adjusted Net Income/(loss) is not defined under U.S. GAAP and is not a measure of operating income, operating performance or liquidity presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP and is subject to important limitations. We believe that the presentation of Adjusted Net Income/(loss) enhances an investor�s understanding of our financial performance. We believe this measure is a useful financial metric to assess our operating performance from period to period by excluding certain items that we believe are not representative of our core business and we use this measure for business planning purposes. We define Adjusted Net Income/(loss) as net earnings/(loss) adjusted for (a) earnings or loss of discontinued operations, net of tax, (b) amortization attributable to purchase accounting, and (c) income or loss from non-controlling interest in our majority-owned operations. We also make adjustments for other cash and non-cash items included in the table below, partially offset by our estimate of the tax effects as a result of such cash and non-cash items. We believe that Adjusted Net Income/(loss) will provide investors with a useful tool for assessing the comparability between periods of our ability to generate cash from operations available to our stockholders. Our definition of Adjusted Net Income/(loss) may not be the same as similarly titled measures used by other companies.

In calculating Adjusted Net Income/(loss), on a pro forma basis, we give pro forma effect to the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period presented. Certain of these pro forma effects are based on estimates and assumptions, all of which we believe we have a reasonable basis for and are subject to change. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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A reconciliation of earnings from continuing operations, the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measure, to Adjusted Net Income, on a historical and pro forma basis, is as follows:

Pro Forma Fiscal
Year Ended
June 30, Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2017 2017 2016 2015

(dollars in millions) (unaudited)
Earnings from continuing operations $ 224.6 $ 109.8 $ 111.2 $ 210.2
Amortization 61.6 44.3 46.4 46.5
Noncontrolling interest, net of tax �  �  0.3 1.9
Equity compensation 20.9 20.9 10.8 9.0
Impairment charges and (gain)/loss on sale of assets 9.8 9.8 2.7 4.7
Financing related expenses 4.3 4.3 0.0 21.8
U.S. GAAP Restructuring and Other 8.0 8.0 9.0 13.4
Acquisition, integration and other special items 25.6 25.6 18.2 13.8
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) (included in other, net) 9.6 9.6 (10.5) (2.7) 
Other adjustments 3.7 (0.4) (3.3) 22.9
Estimated tax effect of adjustments(a) (44.2) (35.9) (22.7) (42.7) 
Discrete income tax expense/ (benefit) items(a) (134.0) (10.4) (8.9) (130.9) 

Adjusted Net Income $ 189.9 $ 185.6 $ 153.2 $ 167.9

(a) The pro forma tax adjustments for fiscal 2017 include the reversal of historical Cook Pharmica tax benefits that were not acquired as part of the acquisition, the application of a 39% statutory tax rate to the Cook Pharmica pre-tax Adjusted Net Income, and pro forma adjustments as if the Acquisition and Financing Transactions occurred on July 1, 2016.
We define Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA as net income before interest expense, net, depreciation and amortization and income tax (benefit)/provision. Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA is not defined under U.S. GAAP and is not a measure of operating income, operating performance or liquidity presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP and is subject to important limitations. We believe that the presentation of Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA enhances an investor�s understanding of Cook Pharmica�s financial performance. We present Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA in order to provide supplemental information that we consider relevant for the readers of its financial statements, and such information is not meant to replace or supersede U.S. GAAP measures. We define Cook Pharmica�s Adjusted EBITDA as Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA primarily adjusted for certain estimated cost savings and operating expense reductions related to historical corporate allocations that are not expected to continue after the Acquisition, as well as a new supply agreement with two affiliates of the Seller that will go into effect at the closing of the Acquisition and replace an informal arrangement among those parties that existed prior to the Acquisition. Cook Pharmica�s Adjusted EBITDA is not defined under U.S. GAAP and is subject to important limitations. Because not all companies use identical calculations, our presentation of Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have important limitations as analytical tools, and investors should not consider them in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of results as reported under U.S. GAAP. Investors should be aware that Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be entirely
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comparable to Catalent�s measure of EBITDA from continuing operations and Adjusted EBITDA. A reconciliation of Cook Pharmica�s net income, the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measure, to Cook Pharmica�s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is as follows:

Twelve Months Ended
June 30
2017

(dollars in millions) (unaudited)
Net income $ 144.2
Interest expense, net �  
Depreciation and amortization 16.6
Income tax (benefit)/provision (110.4) 

EBITDA 50.3
Adjustments(1) 4.1

Adjusted EBITDA $ 54.5

(1) Adjustments for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 primarily include certain estimated cost savings and operating expense reductions related to historical corporate allocations that are not expected to continue after the Acquisition, as well as a new supply agreement with two affiliates of the Seller that will go into effect at the closing of the Acquisition and replace an informal arrangement among those parties that existed prior to the Acquisition.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves risks. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below as well as those contained in our 2017 Form 10-K, including our consolidated financial statements and the related notes, which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. These risks could materially affect our business, results of operations or financial condition and cause the value of our common stock to decline. You could lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to the Acquisition

The Acquisition Agreement may be terminated in accordance with its terms, or the Acquisition may otherwise not be completed.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to finance a portion of the purchase price for the Acquisition, if it is completed. However, no assurance can be given that the Acquisition will be completed when expected, on the terms proposed or at all.

The Acquisition Agreement contains conditions that must be fulfilled before a closing may occur. The Acquisition Agreement also contains certain rights to terminate the agreement prior to the closing, including the right of either Catalent or the Seller to terminate the Acquisition (i) if the closing has not occurred prior to March 18, 2018, (ii) if the closing would violate a final, non-appealable order of a governmental authority having competent jurisdiction and (iii) in the event of certain material breaches of the Acquisition Agreement by the other party or parties. The Seller may also terminate in specified circumstances if the closing conditions are satisfied, waived or reasonably capable of being satisfied and we have failed to consummate the Acquisition. In addition, if the Acquisition Agreement is terminated in specified circumstances, a $35.0 million termination fee becomes payable by us to the Seller. There can be no assurance that the conditions to closing will be satisfied or waived or that other events will not intervene to delay or prevent the completion of the Acquisition.

We intend to finance a portion of the purchase price for the Acquisition with the net proceeds from this offering, and the balance of the purchase price with the net proceeds from the Debt Offering and cash on hand. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in raising sufficient funds from the Financing Transactions. Although we entered into the Bridge Loan Commitment, pursuant to which the lenders party thereto, severally and not jointly, have committed to provide financing in an aggregate principal amount of up to $700.0 million, the obligations of the lenders to provide financing under the Bridge Loan Commitment are subject to a number of customary conditions, including, without limitation, the consummation of the Acquisition, the accuracy of certain representations and warranties, the receipt by the lenders of certain documents and information, and the payment of all fees, costs and expenses required to be paid on or prior to closing. We cannot assure you that we will be able to satisfy the conditions under the Bridge Loan Commitment. The closing of the Acquisition is not contingent on our ability to obtain sufficient financing under the Bridge Loan Commitment or otherwise.

We may be unable to obtain the regulatory approvals required to complete the Acquisition or, in order to do so, we may be required to satisfy materially adverse conditions or comply with materially adverse restrictions.

The consummation of the Acquisition is subject to review and approval under the HSR Act and clearance of the Acquisition from the German Federal Cartel Office. We can provide no assurance that all required regulatory approvals will be obtained in order to consummate the Acquisition, and there can be no assurance as to the cost, scope, or impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition, or prospects of the actions that may be required to obtain the required regulatory approvals. Any such action could have a material adverse effect on our business or that of Cook Pharmica and substantially diminish the advantages that we expect from the Acquisition.
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We expect to incur additional indebtedness to finance the Acquisition and may not be able to meet our debt service requirements.

If we successfully close the Debt Offering or obtain the proceeds of the Bridge Facility in order to complete the Acquisition, we will increase our already substantial indebtedness. As of June 30, 2017, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions, we would have had $2,704.1 million (U.S. dollar equivalent) of total indebtedness outstanding, consisting of $1,596.2 million (U.S. dollar equivalent) of secured indebtedness under our senior secured credit facilities, $865.8 million (U.S. dollar equivalent) of senior unsecured indebtedness, in each case including debt issuance costs, $182.9 million representing the fair value of the Deferred Purchase Consideration, and $59.2 million of capital lease and other obligations. In addition, we would have had an additional $188.0 million of unutilized capacity and $12.0 million of outstanding letters of credit under our revolving credit facility.

Our high degree of leverage could have important consequences for us, including:

� reducing the benefits we expect to receive from the Acquisition;

� increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic, industry, or competitive developments;

� exposing us to the risk of increased interest rates because certain of our borrowings, including borrowings under our senior secured credit facilities, are at variable rates of interest;

� exposing us to the risk of fluctuations in exchange rates because certain of our borrowings are denominated in euros, including a portion of our senior secured term loan facilities and our existing notes;

� making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness and any failure to comply with the obligations of any of our debt instruments, including restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions, could result in an event of default under the agreements governing our indebtedness;

� restricting us from making other strategic acquisitions or causing us to make non-strategic divestitures;

� limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product development, debt service requirements, acquisitions and general corporate or other purposes; and

� limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or market conditions and placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors who are less highly leveraged and who, therefore, may be able to take advantage of opportunities that our leverage prevents us from exploiting.
In addition, upon consummation of the Acquisition, we will be obligated to pay the Deferred Purchase Consideration.

Investors will not have any right to require us to repurchase, redeem, or repay any share of common stock offered hereby if the Acquisition is not completed.

This offering is not contingent on completion of the Acquisition. Investors will not have any right to require us to repurchase, redeem, or repay any share of common stock offered hereby if the Acquisition is not completed. Accordingly, even if the Acquisition is not completed, the shares of common stock sold in this offering will remain outstanding. Further, investors will not have any right to require us to repurchase, redeem, or repay any share of common stock offered hereby, if, subsequent to the completion of this offering, we experience any change in our business or financial condition or if the terms of the Acquisition or the financing thereof change. If the Acquisition is not consummated, we intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes.
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We may not realize the growth opportunities and operational synergies that are anticipated from the Acquisition.

The benefits that are expected to result from the Acquisition will depend, in part, on our ability to realize the growth opportunities and operational synergies we anticipate from the Acquisition. Our success in realizing these growth opportunities and operational synergies, and the timing of this realization, depends, in part, on the successful integration of Cook Pharmica. Even if we are able to integrate Cook Pharmica successfully, this integration may not result in the realization of the full benefits of the growth opportunities and operational synergies that we currently expect, nor can we give assurances that these benefits will be achieved when expected or at all. For example, we may not be able to eliminate duplicative costs. Moreover, we also expect to incur expenses in connection with the integration of Cook Pharmica. While it is anticipated that certain expenses will be incurred to achieve operational synergies, such expenses are difficult to estimate accurately, and may exceed current estimates. Accordingly, the benefits from the Acquisition may be offset by costs incurred or delays in integrating the businesses. In addition, the integration of Cook Pharmica may result in material unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities, regulatory risks, competitive responses, and diversion of management�s attention.

The pendency of the Acquisition could adversely affect our business, financial results, and operations, and the market price of shares of our common stock.

The announcement and pendency of the Acquisition could cause disruptions and create uncertainty surrounding our business and affect our relationships with our customers and employees. In addition, we have diverted, and will continue to divert, significant management resources to complete the Acquisition, which could have a negative impact on our ability to manage existing operations or pursue alternative strategic transactions, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Until the completion of the Acquisition, holders of shares of our common stock will be exposed to the risks faced by our existing business without any of the potential benefits from the Acquisition. As a result of investor perceptions about the terms or benefits of the Acquisition, the market price of shares of our common stock may decline.

Our actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from the unaudited pro forma financial data included in this prospectus supplement.

The unaudited pro forma financial data included in this prospectus supplement is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of what our actual financial position or results of operations would have been had the Acquisition, this offering, and the Debt Offering been completed on the dates indicated. The unaudited pro forma financial data has been derived from our audited financial statements and Cook Pharmica�s audited and unaudited financial statements, and reflects assumptions and adjustments that are based upon preliminary estimates and our successful completion of the Acquisition, this offering, and the Debt Offering. The assets and liabilities of Cook Pharmica have been measured at fair value based on various preliminary estimates using assumptions that our management believes are reasonable utilizing information currently available. The process for estimating the fair value of acquired assets and assumed liabilities requires the use of judgment in determining the appropriate assumptions and estimates. These estimates will be revised as additional information becomes available and as additional analyses are performed. Accordingly, the final acquisition accounting adjustments may differ materially from the pro forma adjustments reflected herein. The assumptions used in preparing the unaudited pro forma financial data, including assumptions as to the successful completion of the Acquisition, this offering, and the Debt Offering may not prove to be accurate, and other factors may adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations following the closing of the Acquisition and negatively affect the market price of shares of our common stock.
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Risks Related to this Offering and Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price may change significantly, you may not be able to resell shares of our common stock at or above the price you paid or at all, and you could lose all or part of your investment as a result.

The trading price of our common stock has been, and continues to be, volatile. Since shares of our common stock were offered for sale in our initial public offering on July 31, 2014 through September 22, 2017, our common stock price ranged from a low of $18.92 to a high of $42.22. The trading price of our common stock may be adversely affected due to a number of factors such as those listed in �Risk Factors�Risks Related to Our Business and Industry� included in our 2017 Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference, those listed under the heading ��Risks Related to the Acquisition� above, and the following:

� results of operations that vary from the expectations of securities analysts or investors;

� results of operations that vary from those of our competitors;

� changes in expectations as to our future financial performance, including financial estimates and investment recommendations by securities analysts or investors;

� declines in the market prices of stocks generally, or those of pharmaceutical or other healthcare companies;

� strategic actions by us or our competitors;

� announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, new products, acquisitions, joint marketing relationships, joint ventures, other strategic relationships, or capital commitments;

� changes in general economic or market conditions or trends in our industry or markets;

� changes in business or regulatory conditions or regulatory actions taken with respect to our business or the business of any of our competitors or customers;

� future sales of our common stock or other securities;

� investor perceptions of the investment opportunity associated with our common stock relative to other investment alternatives;

� the public response to press releases or other public announcements by us or third parties, including our filings with or documents furnished to the SEC;

� announcements relating to litigation;

� guidance, if any, that we provide to the public, any change in this guidance, or any failure to meet this guidance;

� the development and sustainability of an active trading market for our stock;
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� changes in accounting principles or our application of these principles to our business; and

� other events or factors, including those resulting from natural disasters, hostilities, acts of terrorism, geopolitical activity, or responses to these events.
Broad market and industry fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. In addition, price volatility may be greater if the public float or trading volume of our common stock is low, and the amount of public float on any given day can vary depending on whether our stockholders choose to hold for the long term.

Following periods of market volatility, stockholders have been known to institute securities class action litigation in order to recover their resulting losses. If we become involved in securities litigation, it could have a substantial cost and divert resources and the attention of senior management from our business regardless of the outcome of such litigation.
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Because we have no plan to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future, you may not receive any return on your investment in your stock unless you sell it for a net price greater than that which you paid for it.

We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, for future operations, expansion, and debt repayment and have no current plan to pay any cash dividend for the foreseeable future. Our board of directors has also authorized a stock buyback program that we may use from time to time to purchase our common stock. Any future decision to pay a dividend, and the amount and timing of any future dividend on shares of our common stock, will be at the sole discretion of our board of directors. Our board of directors may take into account, when deciding whether or how to pay a dividend, numerous factors, including general and economic conditions, our financial condition and results of operations, our available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, possible future alternative deployments of our cash, our future capital requirements, contractual, legal, tax and regulatory restrictions and implications on the payment of dividends by us to our stockholders or by our subsidiaries to us, and such other factors as our board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is limited by covenants in the agreements governing our outstanding indebtedness and may be limited by covenants of any future indebtedness, including the Debt Offering, we or our subsidiaries incur. As a result, you may not receive any return on an investment in our common stock unless you sell our common stock for a price greater than that which you paid for it, taking into account any applicable commission or other costs of acquisition or sale.

If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they downgrade our stock or our sector, our stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock has been affected in part by the research and reports that industry and financial analysts publish about us or our business. We do not control these analysts. Furthermore, if one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our stock or our industry, change their views regarding the stock of any of our competitors, or other healthcare sector companies, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, the market price of our stock could decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, we could lose visibility in the market, which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline.

Future sales, or the perception of future sales, of common stock by us in the public market following this offering could cause the market price for our common stock to decline.

The sale of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales could occur, could harm the prevailing market price of shares of our common stock. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate.

In addition, 1,543,653 shares of common stock may become eligible for sale upon exercise of vested options. A total of 6,700,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, of which 2,522,030 shares of common stock remain available for future issuance at September 20, 2017. These shares can be sold in the public market upon issuance, subject to restrictions under the securities laws applicable to resales by affiliates.

In connection with this offering, we, our executive officers, and directors will sign lock-up agreements with the underwriters of this offering that, subject to certain customary exceptions, restrict the sale of shares of our common stock for 45 days following the date of this prospectus supplement. Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC may, in their sole discretion, release all or any portion of the shares of common stock subject to such lock-up agreements.

The market price of shares of our common stock could drop significantly if the holders of these shares sell them or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them. These factors could also make it more difficult for
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us to raise additional funds through future offerings of shares of our common stock or other equity securities that we wish to issue. In the future, we may also issue our securities in connection with investments or acquisitions. The number of shares of our common stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could constitute a material portion of then-outstanding shares of our common stock, subject to limitations on issuance of new shares without stockholder approval imposed by the NYSE. Any issuance of additional securities in connection with investments or acquisitions may result in dilution to you.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documents could delay or prevent a change of control.

Certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, defer or prevent a merger, acquisition, tender offer, takeover attempt or other change of control transaction that may otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders, including transactions that might otherwise result in the payment of a premium over the market price for the shares held by our stockholders.

These provisions provide for, among other things:

� a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms;

� the ability of our board of directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock;

� advance notice for nominations of directors by stockholders and for stockholders to include matters to be considered at our annual meetings (though our board has implemented shareholder proxy access, beginning with our 2018 annual meeting of shareholders);

� certain limitations on convening special stockholder meetings;

� the removal of directors only for cause and only upon the affirmative vote of holders of at least 66-2/3% of the shares of common stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (a level that our board will reduce to a simple majority, subject to shareholder approval at our 2017 annual meeting of shareholders); and

� any amendment of our bylaws and of certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation only by the affirmative vote of at least 66-2/3% of the shares of common stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (though our board will be reducing the threshold for amendment of our bylaws to a simple majority, subject to shareholder approval at our 2017 annual meeting of shareholders).
These anti-takeover provisions could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if the third-party�s offer may be considered beneficial by many of our stockholders. As a result, our stockholders may be limited in their ability to obtain a premium for their shares. See �Description of Capital Stock� in the accompanying prospectus.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement contains or incorporates by reference forward-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to, among other things, our operations and financial performance. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts. In some cases, you can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as �outlook,� �believes,� �expects,� �potential,� �continues,� �may,� �will,� �should,� �could,� �seeks,� �predicts,� �intends,� �plans,� �estimates,� �anticipates� or the negative version of these words or other comparable words. These statements are based on assumptions and assessments made by our management in light of their experience and their perception of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments, and other factors they believe to be appropriate. Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there are or will be important factors that could cause actual timing, outcomes or results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements.

Some of the factors that may cause actual results, developments and business decisions to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those described under the sections entitled �Risk Factors� in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, our 2017 Form 10-K and under the heading �Risk Factors�Risks Related to the Acquisition� above, and the following:

� the Acquisition Agreement may be terminated in accordance with its terms, or the Acquisition may otherwise not be completed;

� we may be unable to obtain the regulatory approvals required to complete the Acquisition or, in order to do so, we may be required to satisfy materially adverse conditions or comply with materially adverse restrictions;

� we expect to incur additional indebtedness to finance the Acquisition and may not be able to meet our debt service requirements;

� investors will not have any right to require us to repurchase, redeem, or repay any share of common stock offered hereby if the Acquisition is not completed;

� we may not realize the growth opportunities and operational synergies that are anticipated from the Acquisition;

� the pendency of the Acquisition could adversely affect our business, financial results and operations, and the market price of shares of our common stock;

� our actual financial position and results of operations may differ materially from the unaudited pro forma financial data included in this prospectus supplement;

� we participate in a highly competitive market, and increased competition may adversely affect our business;

� the demand for our offerings depends in part on our customers� research and development and the clinical and market success of their products. Our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be harmed if our customers spend less on, or are less successful in, these activities;

� we are subject to product and other liability risks that could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, and cash flows;

� failure to comply with existing and future regulatory requirements could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition;

� failure to provide quality offerings to our customers could have an adverse effect on our business and subject us to regulatory actions and costly litigation;
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� the services and offerings we provide are highly exacting and complex, and if we encounter problems providing the services or support required, our business could suffer;

� our global operations are subject to economic, political, and regulatory risks, including the risks of changing regulatory standards or changing interpretations of existing standards, that could affect the profitability of our operations or require costly changes to our procedures;

� the referendum in the United Kingdom (the �U.K.�) and resulting decision of the U.K. government to consider exiting from the European Union could have future adverse effects on our revenue and costs, and therefore our profitability;

� if we do not enhance our existing or introduce new technology or service offerings in a timely manner, our offerings may become obsolete over time, customers may not buy our offerings, and our revenue and profitability may decline;

� we and our customers depend on patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, and other forms of intellectual property protections, but these protections may not be adequate;

� our future results of operations are subject to fluctuations in the costs, availability, and suitability of the components of the products we manufacture, including active pharmaceutical ingredients, excipients, purchased components, and raw materials;

� changes in market access or healthcare reimbursement for our customers� products in the United States or internationally, including the possible repeal or replacement of the Affordable Care Act in the United States, could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition by affecting demand for our offerings;

� as a global enterprise, fluctuations in the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance and results of operations;

� tax legislation initiatives or challenges to our tax positions could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition;

� our ability to use our net operating loss carryforwards and certain other tax attributes may be limited;

� changes to the estimated future profitability of the business may require that we establish an additional valuation allowance against all or some portion of our net U.S. deferred tax assets;

� we are dependent on key personnel;

� we use advanced information and communication systems to run our operations, compile and analyze financial and operational data, and communicate among our employees, customers, and counter-parties, and the risks generally associated with such information and communications systems could adversely affect our results of operations;

� we engage, from time to time, in acquisitions and other transactions that may complement or expand our business or divest of non-strategic businesses or assets. We may not be able to complete such transactions, and such transactions, if executed, pose significant risks and could have a negative effect on our operations;

� our offerings and our customers� products may infringe on the intellectual property rights of third parties;

� we are subject to environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations, which could increase our costs and restrict our operations in the future;
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� we are subject to labor and employment laws and regulations, which could increase our costs and restrict our operations in the future;

� certain of our pension plans are underfunded, and additional cash contributions we may make will reduce the cash available for funding the activities of our business, such as the payment of our interest expense; and
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� our substantial leverage could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to react to changes in the economy or in our industry, expose us to interest-rate risk to the extent of our variable rate debt, and prevent us from meeting our obligations under our indebtedness.
We caution you that the risks, uncertainties, and other factors referenced above may not contain all of the risks, uncertainties, and other factors that are important to you. In addition, we cannot assure you that we will realize the results, benefits, or developments that we expect or anticipate or, even if substantially realized, that they will result in the consequences or affect us or our business in the way expected. There can be no assurance that (i) we have correctly measured or identified all factors affecting our business or the extent of these factors� likely impact, (ii) the available information with respect to these factors on which such analysis is based is complete or accurate, (iii) such analysis is correct, or (iv) our strategy, which is based in part on this analysis, will be successful. The factors above should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. All forward-looking statements included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus apply only as of the date of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, or as of the date they were made and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments, or otherwise, except as required by law.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate the net proceeds to us from the offering to be approximately $             million (approximately $             million if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of common stock), after deducting the underwriting discount and our estimated offering expenses.

Each $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed public offering price of $40.76 per share, the last reported sale price of our common stock on September 22, 2017, would (decrease) increase the number of shares of common stock to be issued by approximately (150,000) and approximately 150,000, respectively, assuming the aggregate dollar amount of shares of common stock offered by us remains the same and after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and our estimated offering expenses. We do not anticipate increasing the dollar amount of the net proceeds of this offering even if the price per share of common stock is above the assumed price.

Completion of this offering is not contingent on completion of the Debt Offering or the Acquisition, and the Debt Offering and the Acquisition are not contingent on the completion of this offering. Accordingly, even if the Acquisition is not consummated, shares of our common stock sold in this offering will remain outstanding.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering together with the net proceeds of the Debt Offering and cash on hand to fund the purchase price of the Acquisition and to pay related fees, costs, and expenses. If the Acquisition is not consummated, we intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes. Pending their use, the net proceeds may be invested temporarily in short-term marketable securities or used to reduce outstanding short-term borrowings.

The following table outlines the sources and uses of funds for the portion of the consideration for the Acquisition to be paid at the closing, assuming the underwriters do not exercise their option to purchase additional shares of common stock in this offering. The table assumes that the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions are completed simultaneously, but this offering is expected to occur before completion of the Acquisition. Amounts in the table are estimated. Actual amounts may vary from the estimated amounts.

Sources of Funds Uses of Funds
(dollars in millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 90 Acquisition consideration(3) $ 750
Common stock offered hereby(1) 250 Estimated fees and expenses(4) 40

New notes offered in the Debt Offering(2) 450

Total sources $ 790         Total uses $ 790

(1) Before underwriting discounts and our expenses and assuming no exercise of the underwriters� option.

(2) Before the initial purchasers� discount and our expenses.

(3) The aggregate purchase price payable by us is $950 million, of which (a) $750 million is payable on the closing date of the Acquisition (less an amount to be placed in escrow for adjustment purposes and a previous deposit), subject to customary purchase price adjustments related to the amount of Cook Pharmica�s working capital, cash, debt, and transaction expenses, as described in the Acquisition Agreement, and (b) the Deferred Purchase Consideration is payable in $50 million increments on each anniversary of the closing date of the Acquisition over four years.

(4) Estimated fees and expenses include underwriting discounts and expenses of this offering and the fees and expenses associated with the Bridge Loan Commitment, the Debt Offering, and the Acquisition.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our cash and cash equivalents and our capitalization as of June 30, 2017 on:

� an actual basis;

� an as adjusted basis, after giving effect to this offering and the payment of underwriting discounts and expenses (but not the application of the net proceeds therefrom), assuming no exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares of common stock; and

� on a pro forma basis to give effect to this offering, the Debt Offering, the Acquisition, the payment of related costs, fees and expenses and the application of the net proceeds of the Financing Transactions for those purposes.
You should read this table in conjunction with �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� and our audited financial statements in our 2017 Form 10-K incorporated by reference herein, as well as (i) �Summary�Recent Developments,� (ii) �Use of Proceeds,� (iii) the historical financial statements and related notes of Cook Pharmica, and (iv) �Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements,� each appearing elsewhere in this prospectus supplement. Undue reliance should not be placed on the pro forma information included in this capitalization table because this offering is not contingent on completion of the Debt Offering, the Acquisition, the payment of related costs, fees, and expenses or the application of the net proceeds of the Financing Transactions for those purposes.

As of June 30, 2017
Actual As Adjusted Pro Forma

(dollars in millions, except per share data)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 288.3 $ 530.4 $ 211.5

Debt (including current portion):
Senior secured credit facilities:
Term loans(1) 1,596.2 1,596.2 1,596.2
Revolving credit facility(2) �  �  �  
Existing notes(3) 424.3 424.3 424.3
Debt Offering(4) �  �  441.5
Deferred purchase consideration(5) �  �  182.9
Capital leases 53.3 53.3 53.3
Other obligations(6) 5.9 5.9 5.9

Total debt 2,079.7 2,079.7 2,704.1

Stockholders� equity:
Common stock $0.01 par value; 1.0 billion shares authorized, actual, as adjusted, and pro forma; 125,049,867 shares issued and
outstanding, actual; 131,179,867 shares issued and outstanding, as adjusted and pro forma 1.3 1.4 1.4
Preferred stock $0.01 par value; 100 million authorized, actual, adjusted, and pro forma; 0 issued and outstanding, actual, as adjusted,
and pro forma �  �  �  
Additional paid-in capital 1,992.0 2,234.0 2,234.0
Accumulated deficit (955.7) (955.7) 968.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (314.1) (314.1) (314.1) 
Total shareholders� equity 723.5 965.6 953.2

Total capitalization $ 2,803.2 $ 3,045.3 $ 3,657.3
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(1) The term loans under our senior secured credit facilities consist of (a) $1,244.2 million of U.S. dollar-denominated term loans and (b) $352.0 million (U.S. dollar equivalent) of euro-denominated term loans, all of which mature in May 2021.
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(2) The revolving credit facility under our senior secured credit facilities provides for availability of $200.0 million and matures in May 2019 or earlier under certain circumstances. As of June 30, 2017, we had no borrowings under this facility and $12.0 million in outstanding letters of credit.

(3) This amount represents the U.S. dollar equivalent of our existing notes.

(4) This amount represents the aggregate principal amount of new notes expected to be issued in the Debt Offering. The Debt Offering has not been and, if issued, will not be registered under the Securities Act, and the new notes will be offered only to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act and to persons outside the United States pursuant to Regulation S under the Securities Act.

(5) This amount represents the estimated fair value of the Deferred Purchase Consideration.

(6) Other obligations consist primarily of loans for equipment and certain working capital obligations.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On September 18, 2017, we entered into the Acquisition Agreement with the Seller and Cook Pharmica. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Acquisition Agreement, at the closing, we will acquire 100% of the outstanding equity interests of Cook Pharmica. The aggregate purchase price payable by us is $950.0 million of which (i) $750.0 million is payable on the closing date of the Acquisition (less an amount to be placed in escrow for adjustment purposes and a previous deposit), subject to customary purchase price adjustments related to the amount of Cook Pharmica�s working capital, cash, debt and transaction expense reimbursement as described in the Acquisition Agreement and (ii) the Deferred Purchase Consideration of $200 million is payable in $50.0 million increments on each anniversary of the closing date of the Acquisition over four years.

The closing of the Acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions, including the expiration or termination of the waiting period under the HSR Act and the clearance of the Acquisition from the German Federal Cartel Office. The Acquisition Agreement contains certain termination rights for the Seller and us, including if the closing does not occur before March 18, 2018. We have agreed to pay the Seller a termination fee of $35.0 million upon termination of the Acquisition Agreement under certain specified circumstances. We currently anticipate obtaining satisfaction or waiver of the closing conditions and closing the Acquisition during the second quarter of our fiscal 2018, although there can be no assurance that the Acquisition will close when anticipated, or at all.

We expect to obtain the funds necessary to pay the portion of the Acquisition consideration due at the closing with (a) the net proceeds from the common stock offering made pursuant to this prospectus supplement, (b) the net proceeds from the issuance of $450.0 million aggregate principal amount of new notes to be sold pursuant to the Debt Offering and (c) cash on hand. As described elsewhere in this prospectus supplement, we are giving effect to the issuance of approximately 6,133,464 shares of our common stock at an assumed price of $40.76 per share, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on September 22, 2017.

Our fiscal year ends on June 30, while Cook Pharmica�s fiscal year ends on December 31. Pursuant to Rule 11-02(c)(3) of Regulation S-X under the Securities Act, the fiscal years have been conformed to have a fiscal year end of June 30 for the purpose of presenting summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, because the two fiscal year ends are separated by more than 93 days.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet combines our audited year end consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2017 and the unaudited balance sheet of Cook Pharmica as of June 30, 2017. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2017 combines our audited consolidated statement of operations for fiscal 2017 with the unaudited statement of income of Cook Pharmica for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017. The unaudited statement of income of Cook Pharmica for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 is derived by adding the unaudited statement of income information for the six months ended June 30, 2017 to the audited statement of income information for the year ended December 31, 2016 and subtracting the unaudited statement of income information for the six months ended June 30, 2016.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations gives effect to the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions as if they had closed on July 1, 2016. The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet gives effect to the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions as if they had closed on June 30, 2017. The summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not give effect to the potential Credit Agreement Amendment.

The historical financial data is adjusted in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements to give effect to unaudited pro forma adjustments that are (1) directly attributable to the Acquisition and Financing Transactions, (2) factually supportable and (3) with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on our consolidated operating results.
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The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based upon available information and certain assumptions that our management believes are reasonable. Assumptions underlying the pro forma adjustments are described in the accompanying notes, which should be read in conjunction with the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data.

In addition, in connection with our entry into the Acquisition Agreement, we and the Seller have agreed that, on the closing of the Acquisition, (i) the Seller and Cook Pharmica will enter into a transition services agreement, pursuant to which the Seller and Cook Pharmica will provide certain services to facilitate the transition of Cook Pharmica�s business and (ii) Cook Pharmica and Cook Medical will enter into a supply agreement, pursuant to which Cook Pharmica will manufacture, fill, inspect, label, package, test, release and supply in vitro fertilization (IVF) media to Cook Medical and its affiliates. No pro forma adjustments were made in contemplation of these two agreements as they were not material.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations is not necessarily indicative of operating results that would have been achieved had the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions been completed as of July 1, 2016 and are not intended to project our future financial results after the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet does not purport to reflect what our financial condition would have been had the Acquisition and the Financing Transactions closed on June 30, 2017 or for any future or historical period. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations and balance sheet do not reflect the cost of any integration activities or benefits from the Acquisition that may be derived, either or both of which may have a material effect on our consolidated results in periods following completion of the Acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data should be read in conjunction with the following information:

� the notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data;

� Item 1.01 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 19, 2017, including the exhibit thereto, which describes the Acquisition and which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement;

� our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for fiscal 2017, which are included in our 2017 Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement;

� the audited financial statements of Cook Pharmica as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, which are included in this prospectus supplement; and

� the unaudited financial statements of Cook Pharmica as of June 30, 2017 and for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, which are included in this prospectus supplement.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

June 30, 2017

(dollars in millions, except per share data)

Catalent Cook Pharmica
Financing

Transactions Acquisition Pro Forma
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 288.3 $ �  $   683.6(a) $ (760.4)(b) $ 211.5
Trade receivables, net 488.8 32.9 �  �  521.7
Inventories 184.9 16.2 �  �  201.1
Prepaid expenses and other 97.8 2.0 �  �  99.8

Total current assets 1,059.8 51.1 683.6   (760.4) 1034.1
Property, plant, and equipment, net 995.9 171.7 �  63.0(c) 1,230.6
Other assets:
Goodwill 1,044.1 �  �  408.7(d) 1,452.8
Other intangibles, net 273.1 �  �  260.0(e) 533.1
Deferred income taxes 53.9 110.6 �  (110.6)(f) 53.9
Other 27.5 �  �  �  27.5

Total assets $ 3,454.3 $ 333.4 $ 683.6 $ (139.3) $ 4,332.0

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term obligations and other short-term borrowings $ 24.6 $ �  $ �  $ 48.4(g) $ 73.0
Accounts payable 163.2 4.9 �  �  168.1
Other accrued liabilities 281.2 18.6(h) �  �  299.8

Total current liabilities 469.0 23.5 �  48.4 540.9
Long-term obligations, less current portion 2,055.1 �  441.5(i) 134.5(g) 2,631.1
Pension liability 129.5 �  �  �  129.5
Deferred income taxes 31.7 �  �  �  31.7
Other liabilities 45.5 0.1(h) �  �  45.6
Commitment and contingencies �  �  �  �  �  
Shareholders� equity/(deficit):
Common stock $0.01 par value; 1.0 billion shares authorized, actual, as adjusted, and pro forma; 125,049,867 shares issued and
outstanding, actual; 131,179,867 shares issued and outstanding, as adjusted and pro forma 1.3 �  0.1(j) �  1.4
Preferred stock $0.01 par value; 100 million authorized, actual, adjusted, and pro forma; 0 issued and outstanding, actual, as adjusted,
and pro forma �  �  �  �  �  
Additional paid in capital 1,992.0 �  242.0(j) �  2,234.0
Accumulated deficit (955.7) (163.9) �  151.5(j),(k) (968.1) 
Net parent investment �  473.7 �  (473.7)(k) �  
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) (314.1) �  �  �  (314.1) 

Edgar Filing: CapLease, Inc. - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 27



Total shareholders� equity 723.5 309.8 242.1 (322.2) 953.2

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 3,454.3 $ 333.4 $ 683.6 $ (139.3) $ 4,332.0

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(dollars in millions, except per share data)

Catalent

Cook
Pharmica
(Note 1) Reclassifications(l)

Financing
Transactions Acquisition Pro Forma

Net revenue $ 2,075.4 $ 179.0 $ 1.3 $ �  $     �  $   2,255.7
Cost of sales 1,420.8 119.4 1.4 �  1.1(m) 1,542.7

Gross margin 654.6 59.6 (0.1) �  (1.1) 713.0
Selling, general and administrative expenses 402.6 21.6 4.5 �  14.6(n),(o) 443.3
Impairment charges and (gain)/loss on sale of assets 9.8 �  �  �  �  9.8
Research and development �  1.1 (1.1) �  �  
Corporate Allocation �  3.1 (3.1) �  �  
Restructuring and other 8.0 �  �  �  �  8.0

Operating earnings 234.2 33.8 (0.4) �  (15.7) 251.9
Interest expense, net 90.1 �  �  32.5(p) �  122.6
Other (income)/expense, net 8.5 �  (0.4) �  �  8.1

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes 135.6 33.8 �  (32.5) (15.7) 121.2
Income tax expense/(benefit) 25.8 (110.4)(q) �  (12.7)(q) (6.1)(q) (103.4) 

Net earnings $ 109.8 $ 144.2 $ �  $   (19.8) $ (9.6) $ 224.6

Earnings per share attributable to Catalent
Basic
Net earnings $ 0.88 $ 1.71(r)
Diluted
Net earnings 0.87 1.69(r)

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
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Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

As Cook Pharmica�s fiscal year of December 31 differs from our fiscal year of June 30, in order for the pro forma results to be comparable to ours, the Cook Pharmica statement of income for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 was calculated as follows:

Six months
ended

June 30, 2017 +

Year Ended
December 31,

2016 -

Six months
ended

June 30, 2016 =

Twelve
months ended
June 30, 2017

(dollars in millions) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Net revenues - external $ 83.9 $ 168.3 $ 82.7 $ 169.5
Revenues - affiliates 5.0 9.5 5.0 9.5

Total revenues 88.9 177.8 87.7 179.0
Cost of revenues 60.8 121.9 63.3 119.4

Gross profit 28.1 55.9 24.4 59.6

Sales, marketing, and administrative 11.0 21.9 11.3 21.6
Research and development 0.7 1.0 0.6 1.1
Corporate allocation 1.9 2.9 1.7 3.1
Other expense, net 0.1 0.1 0.2 �  

Income before income taxes 14.4 30.0 10.6 33.8

Income tax expense / (benefit) (110.7) 0.1 (0.2) (110.4) 

Net income $ 125.1 $ 29.9 $ 10.8 $ 144.2

Note 2 - Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation

As discussed above, the aggregate purchase price for the Acquisition is $950.0 million of which (i) $750.0 million is payable on the closing date of the Acquisition (less an amount to be placed in escrow for adjustment purposes and a previous deposit), subject to customary purchase price adjustments related to the amount of Cook Pharmica�s working capital, cash, debt and transaction expenses as described in the Acquisition Agreement and (ii) the Deferred Purchase Consideration of $200.0 million is payable in $50.0 million increments on each anniversary of the closing date of the Acquisition over four years.

The Acquisition will be accounted for as a business combination in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (�ASC�) 805 Business Combinations, which will establish a new basis of accounting for all identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value as of the Acquisition completion date. Accordingly, the cost to acquire such interests will be allocated to the underlying net assets based on their respective fair values. The fair value of Cook Pharmica�s identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, along with the Deferred Purchase Consideration, are based on a preliminary estimate of fair value as of June 30, 2017. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired will be recorded as goodwill. The allocation of the purchase price to all identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements is based on preliminary estimates using assumptions that our management believes are reasonable based on currently available information as of the date of this prospectus supplement. The final purchase price and fair value assessment of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be completed following the closing date of the Acquisition based on a detailed valuation analysis that has not yet been completed. The final purchase price allocation may be different from that reflected in the preliminary pro forma purchase price allocation presented herein, and this difference may be material.
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Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation

(dollars in millions)
Preliminary purchase price:
Cash paid at closing $ 748.0
Fair value of Deferred Purchase Consideration(*) 182.9

Total estimated purchase price $ 930.9

Preliminary purchase price allocation
Property, plant and equipment $ 234.7
Customer relationships 260.0
Other net assets 27.5
Goodwill 408.7

Total $ 930.9

(*) We have preliminarily determined the fair value using assumptions including the yield on applicable U.S. Treasury notes, our credit spread, and a present value factor.
Note 3 - Conforming Accounting Policies

Following the Acquisition, we will conduct a review of Cook Pharmica�s accounting policies in an effort to determine if differences in accounting policies require reclassification of Cook Pharmica�s results of operations or reclassification of assets or liabilities to conform to our accounting policies and classifications. As a result of that review, we may identify differences between the accounting policies of the two companies that, when conformed, could have a material impact on these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements. During the preparation of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, we were not aware of any material differences between the accounting policies of the two companies and accordingly, these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not assume any material differences in accounting policies between the two companies, other than certain financial statement reclassifications described in Note 4.

Note 4 - Pro Forma Adjustments

The adjustments described below are keyed to the footnotes in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements. This note should be read in conjunction with Note 1�Basis of Presentation, Note 2�Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation, and Note 3�Conforming Accounting Policies.

Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

(a) Represents an increase in cash and cash equivalents in the amount of $683.6 million, which relates to this offering and the Debt Offering, calculated as:

(i) an increase of $250.0 million to reflect the gross proceeds expected to be raised in this offering (assuming no exercise of the option granted to the underwriters to purchase additional shares);

(ii) a decrease of $7.9 million to reflect fees of this offering (assuming no exercise of the option granted to the underwriters to purchase additional shares);

(iii) an increase of $450.0 million to reflect the gross proceeds expected to be raised in the Debt Offering; and

(iv) a decrease of $8.5 million to reflect debt issuance costs related to the Debt Offering.
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(b) Represents a decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the amount of $760.4 million, which relates to the Acquisition, calculated as:

(i) a decrease of $748.0 million paid by us at the closing of the Acquisition; and

(ii) a decrease of $12.4 million to reflect other estimated Acquisition-related costs such as fees and expenses payable with respect to the Bridge Loan Commitment and other legal and banking fees and expenses that were not incurred as of June 30, 2017 and are expected to be incurred through the closing of the Acquisition.

(c) Represents an increase in property, plant, and equipment of $63.0 million as a result of adjusting the historical book value of such assets to the preliminary estimated fair value.

(d) Represents the recognition of $408.7 million of goodwill for the excess of the preliminary fair value purchase price over the estimated fair value of Cook Pharmica�s net assets.

(e) Represents the recognition of $260.0 million of intangible assets consisting of customer relationships as a result of the Acquisition, calculated using the multi-period excess earnings method for the valuation of customer relationships.

(f) Represents the elimination of Cook Pharmica�s deferred income taxes of $110.6 million as a result of the Acquisition, because the transaction is taxable and does not result in any deferred taxes as of date of closing of the Acquisition, since the book basis and tax basis of Cook Pharmica will be the same.

(g) Represents the current and long-term portions of the Deferred Purchase Consideration, recognized at estimated fair value as of June 30, 2017, as discussed in Note 2�Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation.

(h) Represents reclassifications to conform to our basis of presentation for our balance sheet, which have no effect on the net equity of Cook Pharmica and relate to:

(i) Historical employee compensation, business taxes, sundry, and deferred revenue totaling $18.6 million, which were reclassified to other accrued liabilities.

(dollars in millions)
June 30, 2017

Increase/(Decrease)
Employee Compensation (5.8) 
Business taxes (1.2) 
Sundry (0.7) 
Deferred revenue (10.9) 

Other accrued liabilities 18.6

(ii) Historical deferred compensation of $0.1 million, which was reclassified to other liabilities.

(dollars in millions)
June 30, 2017

Increase/(Decrease)
Deferred Compensation (0.1) 
Other liabilities 0.1
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(i) Represents the net increase in long-term obligations of $450.0 million as a result of the Debt Offering, net of $8.5 million of debt issuance costs.

(j) Represents an increase to our equity as a result of this offering based on approximately 6,133,464 shares assumed to be issued at a price of $40.76, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on September 22, 2017:

(i) an increase in shareholders� equity of $0.1 million relating to the issuance of approximately 6,133,464 shares at a par value of $0.01;
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(ii) an increase in shareholders� equity / additional paid-in capital of $249.9 million relating to the aggregate capital assumed to be raised in excess of par value (exclusive of underwriting fees);

(iii) a decrease in shareholders� equity / additional paid-in capital of $8.0 million relating to other equity offering fees; and

(iv) an increase in accumulated deficit of $12.4 million to reflect other estimated transaction costs, including expenses of the Bridge Facility and legal and banking fees that were not incurred as of June 30, 2017 and are expected to be incurred through the closing of the Acquisition.

We assumed no exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares for purposes of the pro forma calculations.

(k) Represents the elimination of Cook Pharmica�s equity balance in connection with the Acquisition.
Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

(l) Represents reclassifications to conform to our basis of presentation for our statement of operations, which have no effect on the net income of Cook Pharmica, and relate to:

(i) research and development costs and corporate allocation costs totaling $4.2 million, which were reclassified to selling, general and administrative expenses;

(ii) royalty fees of $1.4 million, which were reclassified from other (income)/expense, net to cost of sales;

(iii) research and development revenue of $1.3 million, which was reclassified from other (income)/expense, net to net revenue; and

(iv) employee compensation of $0.3 million, which was reclassified from other (income)/expense, net to selling, general, and administrative expenses.

(m) Represents a net adjustment to depreciation expense of $1.1 million related to the fair value of the property, plant, and equipment acquired in the Acquisition. The revised depreciation expense was calculated on a straight-line basis using the following estimated useful lives as determined by management: Buildings and Improvements�35 years; Machinery and Equipment�5 to 10 years; Other Equipment�4 years. We made an adjustment to conform Cook Pharmica�s typically shorter depreciation schedules to our accounting policies with respect to depreciable lives.

(n) Represents amortization expense of intangible assets resulting from the Acquisition. The intangible assets represent customer relationships with an estimated useful life of 15 years, which we will amortize on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful life was determined based on a review of the time period over which economic benefit is estimated to be generated as well as additional factors. Factors considered include contractual life, the period over which a majority of cash flow is expected to be generated, and/or management�s view based on historical experience with similar assets. Total pro forma amortization expense recorded for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017 is $17.3 million. A 10% increase / decrease in the estimated fair value of intangibles will increase / decrease amortization by $1.7 million.

(o) Represents the elimination of $2.7 million in transaction costs paid by us during our fiscal 2017 that are non-recurring and directly related to the Acquisition.

(p) Represents the adjustments to interest expense of $32.5 million in connection with the Debt Offering and amortization of the Deferred Purchase Consideration, calculated as follows:

(i) an increase of $24.7 million related to cash interest on the new notes at an assumed interest rate. A 0.125 percentage point change in the assumed interest rate on the notes would correspondingly change interest expense by $0.6 million on a pro forma basis for the year ended June 30, 2017;
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(ii) an increase of $1.1 million related to the amortization of an aggregate $8.5 million of debt issuance costs estimated to be incurred in connection with the Debt Offering; and

(iii) an increase of $6.7 million related to non-cash interest on the Deferred Purchase Consideration at an estimated interest rate of 3.68%. The expense associated with this non-cash interest was calculated using the effective interest method.

(q) In the six months ended June 30, 2017, Cook Pharmica determined that it no longer had a three-year cumulative pre-tax loss and expected to generate positive net pre-tax income in future years. Cook Pharmica, therefore, reversed the valuation allowance against the net deferred tax asset, resulting in an income tax benefit of $110.7 million. No pro forma adjustment was made to this income tax benefit as the release of the tax valuation allowance is not directly related to the Acquisition and Financing Transactions. The reversal of the valuation allowance and its impact on the effective tax rate is not considered to be representative of the income taxes of the combined organization on a go-forward basis. We expect Cook Pharmica to achieve an effective tax rate of 39% and have applied that rate to the pro forma adjustments presented herein. Exclusion of the Cook Pharmica income tax benefit from the pro forma net earnings attributable to us would result in basic and diluted net earnings per share of $0.87 and $0.86, respectively, which represents a $0.01 decrease from each of our basic and diluted net earnings per share.

(r) Basic and diluted net earnings per share (�EPS�) are each calculated by dividing pro forma net earnings attributable to us by the weighted average shares outstanding and diluted weighted average shares outstanding, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2017, as adjusted for the issuance of approximately 6,133,464 shares related to the offering as of the beginning of the annual period. We assumed no exercise of the underwriters� over-allotment option for purposes of the pro forma calculation. A 10% increase in the assumed offering price of $40.76, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on September 22, 2017, would not change basic EPS and would increase diluted EPS by $0.01. A 10% decrease in the assumed offering price of $40.76, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on September 22, 2017, would decrease both basic and diluted EPS by $0.01.
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PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock began trading publicly on the NYSE under the symbol �CTLT� as of July 31, 2014. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our common stock. As of September 20, 2017, there were 22 holders of record of our common stock. This stockholder figure does not include a substantially greater number of holders whose shares are held of record by banks, brokers and other financial institutions. The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share for our common stock as reported on the NYSE for the period indicated:

Stock Price
High Low

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016:
First Quarter ended September 30, 2015 $ 34.42 $ 24.05
Second Quarter ended December 31, 2015 $ 28.75 $ 23.63
Third Quarter ended March 31, 2016 $ 27.60 $ 18.92
Fourth Quarter ended June 30, 2016 $ 32.24 $ 20.94

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017:
First Quarter ended September 30, 2016 $ 26.95 $ 22.52
Second Quarter ended December 31, 2016 $ 27.43 $ 21.83
Third Quarter ended March 31, 2017 $ 30.22 $ 25.51
Fourth Quarter ended June 30, 2017 $ 38.73 $ 27.48

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018:
First Quarter ending September 30, 2017 (through September 22, 2017) $ 42.22 $ 33.42
The closing sale price of our common stock, as reported by the NYSE, on September 22, 2017 was $40.76.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock as of September 7, 2017 by (1) each person known to us to beneficially own more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, (2) each of our directors and our fiscal 2017 named executive officers and (3) all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

The amounts and percentages of shares beneficially owned are reported on the basis of SEC regulations governing the determination of beneficial ownership of securities. Under SEC rules, a person is deemed to be a �beneficial owner� of a security if that person has or shares voting power or investment power, which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of such security. A person is also deemed to be a beneficial owner of any securities of which that person has a right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days. Securities that can be so acquired are deemed to be outstanding for purposes of computing such person�s ownership percentage, but not for purposes of computing any other person�s percentage. Under these rules, more than one person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the same securities and a person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities as to which such person has no economic interest.

Except as otherwise indicated in the footnotes below, each of the beneficial owners has, to our knowledge, sole voting and investment power with respect to the indicated shares. Unless otherwise noted, the address of each beneficial owner is 14 Schoolhouse Road, Somerset, New Jersey 08873.

Name of Beneficial Owner
Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned

Percent of Class
Prior to Offering(1)

Percent of Class
After Offering(2)

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.(3) 16,008,034 12.8% % 
BlackRock, Inc.(4) 14,850,119 11.8% % 
The Vanguard Group(5) 9,446,692 7.5% % 
FMR LLC(6) 7,937,478 6.3% % 
Janus Capital Management LLC(7) 7,559,172 6.1% % 
John Chiminski(8) 1,034,336 * *
Matthew Walsh(8) 128,757 * *
William Downie(8) 48,532 * *
Steven Fasman(8) 70,499 * *
Barry Littlejohns(8) 218,152 * *
Sharon Johnson(8) 30,203 * *
Madhavan Balachandran �  * *
J. Martin Carroll 12,523 * *
Rolf Classon 16,665 * *
Gregory T. Lucier 28,663 * *
Donald E. Morel, Jr. 18,799 * *
James Quella(8) 53,625 * *
Uwe Röhrhoff 3,000 * *
Jack Stahl 16,665 * *
Directors and executive officers as a group (19 persons)(9) 2,078,816 1.7% % 

* Represents less than 1%.

(1) Based on the number of shares outstanding at September 7, 2017.

(2) Reflects issuance of                  shares of common stock to be issued in this offering but assumes the underwriters do not exercise their option to purchase                  additional shares of common stock.

(3) Information shown is based on information reported by the filer on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 7, 2017, in which T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. reported that it and its affiliates have sole voting
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power over 4,204,824 shares and sole dispositive power over 16,008,034 shares. The address of T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. is 100 E. Pratt Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21202.

(4) Information shown is based on information reported by the filer on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on January 12, 2017, in which BlackRock, Inc. reported that it has sole voting power over 14,605,189 shares and sole dispositive power over 14,850,119 shares. The address of BlackRock, Inc. is 55 East 52nd Street, New York, New York 10055.

(5) Information shown is based on information reported by the filer on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 10, 2017, in which The Vanguard Group reported that it and its affiliates have sole voting power over 207,575 shares and an aggregate sole dispositive power over 9,232,015 shares. The address of The Vanguard Group is 100 Vanguard Boulevard, Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355.

(6) Information shown is based on information reported by the filer on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on July 10, 2017, in which FMR LLC reported that it and its affiliates have sole voting power over 1,272,445 shares and sole dispositive power over 7,937,478 shares. The address of FMR LLC is 245 Summer Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02210.

(7) Information shown is based on information reported by the filer on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13, 2017, in which Janus Capital Management LLC reported that it and its affiliates have sole voting power over 6,334,280 shares and shared dispositive power over 1,264,892 shares. The address of Janus Capital Management LLC is 151 Detroit Street, Denver, Colorado 80206.

(8) The number of shares beneficially owned includes shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable and/or will be exercisable within 60 days after September 7, 2017, as follows: Mr. Chiminski (495,101), Mr. Littlejohns (195,035), Mr. Walsh (39,921), Mr. Fasman (28,197), Mr. Downie (15,515), and Mr. Quella (36,960).

(9) Includes 1,172,936 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable and/or exercisable within 60 days after September 7, 2017. Does not include amounts held by Ms. Johnson as her employment with us ended on June 30, 2017.
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MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME AND ESTATE TAX CONSEQUENCES TO

NON-U.S. HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income and estate tax consequences to a non-U.S. holder (as defined below) of the ownership and disposition of our common stock as of the date hereof, but does not purport to be a complete analysis of all potential tax consequences. Except where noted, this summary deals only with common stock that is held as a capital asset (i.e., generally, an asset held for investment purposes).

A �non-U.S. holder� means a beneficial owner that is not for U.S. federal income tax purposes any of the following:

� an individual citizen or resident of the United States;

� a corporation (or any other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

� an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

� an estate if its income is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

� a trust if it (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more United States persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (2) has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a �United States person� (within the meaning of the Code).
This summary is based upon provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), and U.S. Treasury regulations, administrative rulings, and judicial decisions as of the date hereof. Those authorities may be changed, perhaps retroactively, and are subject to differing interpretations, so as to result in U.S. federal income and estate tax consequences different from those summarized below. This summary does not address all aspects of U.S. federal income and estate taxes and does not deal with other U.S. federal tax laws (including the Medicare tax on certain investment income) or any foreign, state, local, or other tax considerations that may be relevant to non-U.S. holders in light of their particular circumstances. In addition, this summary does not represent a detailed description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to you if you are subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income tax laws, including, but not limited to, a holder that is a partnership or other pass-through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a non-U.S. holder that is a bank, financial institution, insurance company, tax-exempt or government organization, pension plan, broker, dealer or trader in stocks, securities or currencies, U.S. expatriate, long-term resident of the United States, person subject to the alternative minimum tax, controlled foreign corporation, corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax, tax-qualified retirement plan, passive foreign investment company, a non-U.S. holder holding our common stock as part of a conversion, constructive sale, wash sale or other integrated transaction or a hedge, straddle, synthetic security or other risk reduction strategy, a non-U.S. holder that holds or receives our common stock pursuant to the exercise of any employee stock option or otherwise as compensation, a non-U.S. holder that is deemed to sell our common stock under the constructive sale provisions of the Code or a non-U.S. holder that at any time owns, directly, indirectly or constructively, 5% or more of our outstanding common stock. We cannot assure you that a change in law will not alter significantly the tax considerations that we describe in this summary.

If an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds our common stock, the tax treatment of a partner of a partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner, the activities of the partnership, and certain determinations made at the partner level. If you are a partnership, or a partner of a partnership, holding our common stock, you should consult your tax advisors.

If you are considering the purchase of our common stock, you should consult your own tax advisors concerning the particular U.S. federal income and estate tax consequences to you of the ownership and disposition of our common stock, as well as the consequences to you arising under the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction or any applicable income tax treaty.
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Dividends

Distributions of cash or property that we pay on our common stock (if any) will be treated as taxable dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid from our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles). If the amount of a distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, such excess will be allocated ratably among each share of common stock with respect to which the distribution is paid and will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the non-U.S. holder�s adjusted tax basis in our common stock, and thereafter will be treated as capital gain from a sale or other disposition of our common stock as described below in ��Gain on Disposition of Common Stock.� Your adjusted tax basis generally is the purchase price of the shares, reduced (but not below zero) by any such tax-free returns of capital. Subject to the discussions of backup withholding and additional withholding requirements below, dividends paid to a non-U.S. holder of our common stock generally will be subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty. However, dividends that are effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business by the non-U.S. holder within the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, are attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment of the non-U.S. holder) generally are not subject to U.S. federal withholding tax, provided certain certification and disclosure requirements are satisfied. Instead, such dividends generally are subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis in the same manner as if the non-U.S. holder were a United States person as defined under the Code. Any such effectively connected dividends received by a foreign corporation may be subject to an additional �branch profits tax� on its effectively connected earnings and profits at a 30% rate or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty.

A non-U.S. holder of our common stock who wishes to claim the benefit of an applicable income tax treaty rate and avoid backup withholding, as discussed below, for dividends will be required (a) to complete the applicable Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�) Form W-8 and certify under penalty of perjury that such holder is not a United States person as defined under the Code and is eligible for treaty benefits or (b) if our common stock is held through certain foreign intermediaries, to satisfy the relevant certification requirements of applicable U.S. Treasury regulations. Special rules apply to partnerships and other pass-through entities and these certification and disclosure requirements also may apply to beneficial owners of partnerships and other pass-through entities that hold our common stock.

The certifications described above must be provided prior to the payment of dividends and must be updated periodically. A non-U.S. holder of our common stock eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. withholding tax pursuant to an income tax treaty may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate claim for refund with the IRS. Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding their eligibility for benefits under a relevant income tax treaty and the manner of claiming such benefits.

The foregoing discussion is subject to the discussions below under �Information Reporting and Backup Withholding� and �Additional Withholding Requirements�.

Gain on Disposition of Common Stock

Subject to the discussions of backup withholding and additional withholding requirements below, any gain realized on the sale, exchange, or other taxable disposition of our common stock by a non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless:

� the gain is effectively connected with a trade or business of the non-U.S. holder in the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment of the non-U.S. holder);

� the non-U.S. holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of that disposition, and certain other conditions are met; or
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� we are or have been a �United States real property holding corporation� for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time during the shorter of (i) the five-year period ending on the date of disposition and (ii) the period that the non-U.S. holder held our common stock.
A non-U.S. holder described in the first bullet point immediately above generally will be subject to tax on the net gain derived from the sale under regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates applicable to such holder if it were a United States person as defined under the Code. In addition, if a non-U.S. holder described in the first bullet point immediately above is a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, it may be subject to the branch profits tax equal to 30% of its effectively connected earnings and profits or at such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty.

An individual non-U.S. holder described in the second bullet point immediately above generally will be subject to a flat 30% tax on the gain derived from the sale, which may be offset by U.S. source capital losses, even though the individual is not considered a resident of the United States.

We believe we are not and do not anticipate becoming a �United States real property holding corporation� for U.S. federal income tax purposes. However, because the determination of whether we are a �United States real property holding corporation� is made from time to time and depends on the relative fair market value of our assets, there can be no assurance in this regard. Generally, a corporation is a �United States real property holding corporation� if the fair market value of its �United States real property interests� equals or exceeds 50% of the sum of the fair market values of its worldwide (domestic and foreign) real property interests and its other assets used or held for use in a trade or business (all as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes). For this purpose, real property interests include land, improvements, and associated personal property. If we are or become a �United States real property holding corporation,� so long as our common stock continues to be �regularly traded on an established securities market� (within the meaning of applicable U.S. Treasury regulations), only a non-U.S. holder who holds or held directly, indirectly, or constructively (at any time during the shorter of the five year period preceding the date of disposition or the holder�s holding period) more than 5% of our common stock will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the disposition of our common stock in the same manner as gain that is effectively connected with a trade or business of the non-U.S. holder in the United States, except that the branch profits tax generally will not apply. However, no assurance can be provided that our common stock will be regularly traded on an established securities market for purposes of the rules described above. Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the possible adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences to them if we are, or were to become, a United States real property holding corporation.

The foregoing discussion is subject to the discussions below under �Information Reporting and Backup Withholding� and �Additional Withholding Requirements�.

Federal Estate Tax

Common stock owned (or treated as owned) by an individual non-U.S. holder at the time of death will be included in such holder�s gross estate for U.S. federal estate tax purposes, and may be subject to U.S. federal estate tax, unless an applicable estate tax treaty provides otherwise.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

We must report annually to the IRS and to each non-U.S. holder the amount of dividends paid to such non-U.S. holder and the tax withheld with respect to such dividends, regardless of whether withholding was required. Copies of the information returns reporting such dividends and withholding may also be made available to the tax authorities in the country in which the non-U.S. holder resides under the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty.

A non-U.S. holder will be subject to backup withholding (currently at a rate of 28%) for dividends paid to such holder unless such holder certifies under penalty of perjury that it is a non-U.S. holder (and the payor does
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not have actual knowledge or reason to know that such holder is a United States person as defined under the Code) on a properly executed IRS Form W-8, or such holder otherwise establishes an exemption.

Information reporting and, depending on the circumstances, backup withholding will apply to the proceeds of a sale of our common stock within the United States or conducted through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries, unless the beneficial owner certifies under penalty of perjury that it is a non-U.S. holder (and the payor does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that the beneficial owner is a United States person as defined under the Code), or such owner otherwise establishes an exemption.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be allowed as a refund or a credit against a non-U.S. holder�s U.S. federal income tax liability provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of information reporting and backup withholding in their particular circumstances, including the procedure for claiming any applicable exemption.

Additional Withholding Requirements

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act and related Treasury guidance (commonly referred to as �FATCA�) impose U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30% on payments to certain foreign entities of (i) U.S.-source dividends (including dividends paid on our common stock) and (ii) the gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition after December 31, 2018 of property that produces U.S.-source dividends (including sales or other dispositions of our common stock). This withholding tax applies to a foreign entity, whether acting as a beneficial owner or an intermediary, unless such foreign entity complies with (i) certain information reporting requirements regarding its U.S. account holders and its U.S. owners and (ii) certain withholding obligations regarding certain payments to its account holders and certain other persons, or in each case, such foreign entity otherwise qualifies for an exemption. Accordingly, the entity through which a Non-U.S. Holder holds its common stock will affect the determination of whether such withholding is required. A payee that is a foreign financial institution located in a jurisdiction that has an intergovernmental agreement with the United States governing FATCA may be subject to different rules. Non-U.S. Holders are encouraged to consult their tax advisors regarding FATCA.
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UNDERWRITING

Under the terms and subject to the conditions in an underwriting agreement dated the date of this prospectus supplement, the underwriters named below, for whom Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, and RBC Capital Markets, LLC are acting as representatives, have severally agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to them, severally, the number of shares indicated below:

Name
Number of
Shares

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
RBC Capital Markets, LLC
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith

                      Incorporated

Total

The underwriters and the representatives are collectively referred to as the �underwriters� and the �representatives,� respectively. The underwriters are offering the shares of common stock subject to their acceptance of the shares from us. The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several underwriters to pay for and accept delivery of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement are subject to the approval of certain legal matters by their counsel and to certain other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to take and pay for all of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus supplement if any such shares are taken. The underwriting agreement also provides that, if an underwriter defaults, the purchase commitments of non-defaulting underwriters may also be increased or the offering may be terminated. However, the underwriters are not required to take or pay for the shares covered by the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares described below.

The underwriters initially propose to offer part of the shares of common stock directly to the public at the offering price listed on the cover page of this prospectus supplement and part to certain dealers. After the initial offering of the shares of common stock, the offering price and other selling terms may from time to time be varied by the representatives. Sales of shares made outside of the United States may be made by affiliates of the underwriters. The offering of the shares by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters� right to reject any order in whole or in part.

We have granted to the underwriters an option, exercisable for 30 days from the date of this prospectus supplement, to purchase up to                  additional shares of common stock at the public offering price listed on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, less underwriting discounts and commissions. To the extent the option is exercised, each underwriter will become obligated, subject to certain conditions, to purchase about the same percentage of the additional shares of common stock as the number listed next to the underwriter�s name in the preceding table bears to the total number of shares of common stock listed next to the names of all underwriters in the preceding table.

The following table shows the per share and total public offering price, underwriting discounts and commissions, and proceeds before expenses to us. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters� option to purchase up to an additional                  shares of common stock.

Total
Per Share No Exercise Full Exercise

Public offering price $ $ $
Underwriting discounts and commissions $ $ $
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $ $ $
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The estimated offering expenses payable by us, exclusive of the underwriting discounts and commissions, are approximately $ . In addition to the underwriting discounts and commissions disclosed above, we may pay the underwriters an incentive fee of up to         % of the gross proceeds of the offering received by us, solely at our discretion.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol �CTLT�.

We and all directors and executive officers have agreed that, without the prior written consent of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, we and they will not, during the period ending 45 days after the date of this prospectus supplement (the �restricted period�):

� offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge, grant any option to purchase, make any short sale, or otherwise dispose of any shares of our common stock, including but not limited to any options or warrants to purchase shares of stock or any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, stock or any such substantially similar securities; or

� enter into any hedging or other transaction which is designed to or which reasonably could be expected to lead to or result in a sale or disposition of such person�s shares even if such shares would be disposed by someone other than such person;
whether any such transaction described above is to be settled by delivery of common stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise. We have also agreed not to file, or publicly disclose the intention to file, any registration statement with the SEC relating to the offering of any securities that are substantially similar to the shares (except for any registration statement on Form S-8, or any amendment thereto, to register shares issuable upon exercise of awards granted pursuant to the terms of any employee equity incentive plan) including but not limited to any options or warrants to purchase shares of stock or any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, stock or any such substantially similar securities.

The restrictions described in the immediately preceding paragraph to do not apply to:

� the sale of shares pursuant to the underwriting agreement; or

� the issuance by us of shares of common stock or any such substantially similar securities to be issued upon the conversion or exchange of convertible or exchangeable securities outstanding as of the date of this prospectus supplement of which Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC have been advised in writing; or

� the issuance by us of shares or any such substantially similar securities pursuant to employee incentive plans existing as of the date of the underwriting agreement (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan); or

� the issuance by us of up to 5% of the outstanding shares of the common stock or any such substantially similar securities in connection with the acquisition of, a joint venture with or a merger with, another company, and the filing of a registration statement with respect thereto; or

� the establishment of a trading plan pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�), provided that no transfer occurs under such plan during the restricted period and no public announcement or filing shall be required or voluntarily made by any person in connection therewith other than general disclosure in our periodic reports to the effect that our directors and officers may enter into such trading plans from time to time, except that our executive officers may transfer or sell shares pursuant to trading plans that are entered into prior to this offering; or

� the transfer by a security holder of shares of common stock or any securities convertible into, exchangeable for, exercisable for, or that represent the right to receive common stock (i) by will or
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intestacy, (ii) as a bona fide gift or gifts, (iii) to any trust, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity for the direct or indirect benefit of such holder or the immediate family of such holder (for purposes of this subclause (iii), �immediate family� shall mean any relationship by blood, current or former marriage or adoption, not more remote than first cousin), (iv) to any immediate family member or other dependent, (v) to a nominee or custodian of a person or entity to whom a disposition or transfer would be permissible under clauses (i) through (iv) above, (vi) pursuant to an order of a court or regulatory agency, (vii) from an executive officer to us upon death, disability, or termination of employment of such executive officer, (viii) in connection with transactions by any person other than us relating to common stock acquired in open market transactions after the completion of the offering provided that in the case of this clause (viii) no public reports or filings (including filings under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act) reporting a reduction in beneficial ownership of the common stock shall be required or shall be voluntarily made during the restricted period or any extension thereof, (ix) to us (1) pursuant to the exercise, in each case on a �cashless� or �net exercise� basis, of any option to purchase shares of stock granted by us pursuant to any employee benefit plans or arrangements described herein, where any shares of stock received by such person upon any such exercise will be subject to the terms of the lock-up agreement, or (2) for the purpose of satisfying any withholding taxes (including estimated taxes) due as a result of the exercise of any option to purchase shares of stock or the vesting of any restricted stock awards granted by us pursuant to employee benefit plans or arrangements described herein, in each case on a �cashless� or �net exercise� basis, where any shares of stock received by such holder upon any such exercise or vesting will be subject to the terms of the lock-up agreement, and/or (x) with the prior written consent of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC; provided that: (1) in the case of each transfer or distribution pursuant to clauses (ii) through (v) and clause (vii) above, (a) each donee, trustee, distributee or transferee, as the case may be, agrees to be bound in writing by the restrictions set forth herein; and (b) any such transfer or distribution shall not involve a disposition for value, other than with respect to any such transfer or distribution for which the transferor or distributor receives (x) equity interests of such transferee or (y) such transferee�s interests in the transferor; and (2) in the case of each transfer or distribution pursuant to clauses (ii) through (v) and clause (ix), if any public reports or filings (including filings under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act) reporting a reduction in beneficial ownership of common stock shall be required or shall be voluntarily made during the restricted period or any extension thereof (a) such holder will provide Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC prior written notice informing them of such report or filing and (b) such report or filing shall disclose that such donee, trustee, distributee or transferee, as the case may be, agrees to be bound in writing by the restrictions set
forth herein.

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBC Capital Markets, LLC in their sole discretion, may release the common stock and other securities subject to the lock-up agreements described above in whole or in part at any time with or without notice.

In order to facilitate the offering of the common stock, the underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the common stock. Specifically, the underwriters may sell more shares than they are obligated to purchase under the underwriting agreement, creating a short position. A short sale is covered if the short position is no greater than the number of shares available for purchase by the underwriters under the option. The underwriters can close out a covered short sale by exercising the option or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out a covered short sale, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the open market price of shares compared to the price available under the option. The underwriters may also sell shares in excess of the option, creating a naked short position. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering. As an additional means of facilitating this offering, the underwriters may bid for, and purchase, shares of common stock in the open market to stabilize the price of the common stock. These activities may raise
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or maintain the market price of the common stock above independent market levels or prevent or retard a decline in the market price of the common stock. The underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and may end any of these activities at any time.

In connection with the offering of the shares of our common stock, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC or any person acting for it may effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the shares of our common stock at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period after the issue date. However, there may be no obligation on the stabilizing manager or any of its agents to do this. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time, and must be brought to an end after a limited period.

We and the underwriters have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

A prospectus supplement in electronic format may be made available on websites maintained by one or more underwriters, or selling group members, if any, participating in this offering. The representatives may agree to allocate a number of shares of common stock to underwriters for sale to their online brokerage account holders. Internet distributions will be allocated by the representatives to underwriters that may make internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing, and brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and investment banking services for us, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses.

Certain of the underwriters or their respective affiliates are agents and/or lenders under our senior secured credit facilities, for which they have received or expect to receive customary compensation.

In addition, certain of the underwriters or their respective affiliates have provided the Bridge Loan Commitment to finance a portion of the consideration for the Acquisition and will be entitled to customary fees and reimbursement of expenses in connection therewith upon consummation of the Acquisition. The Bridge Loan Commitment will be reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by 100% of the gross cash proceeds from this offering. See �Summary�Recent Developments�Acquisition Financing.� Certain of the underwriters or their respective affiliates may participate in any notes offering and, if so, will be entitled to customary fees in connection therewith.

In addition, in the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve our securities and instruments. The underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Selling Restrictions

Canada

The shares of our common stock may be sold only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that are accredited investors, as defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or
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subsection 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), and are permitted clients, as defined in National Instrument 31-103 Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any resale of the shares of our common stock must be made in accordance with an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements of applicable securities laws.

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for rescission or damages if this prospectus supplement (including any amendment thereto) contains a misrepresentation, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser�s province or territory. The purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser�s province or territory for particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts (NI 33-105), the underwriters are not required to comply with the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter conflicts of interest in connection with this offering.

European Economic Area

This prospectus has been prepared on the basis that any offer of shares of our common stock in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a �Relevant Member State�) will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of shares of our common stock. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of shares of our common stock which are the subject of the offering contemplated in this prospectus may only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for us or any of the underwriters to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive in relation to such offer. Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized, nor do we or they authorize, the making of any offer of shares of our common stock in circumstances in which an obligation arises for us or the underwriters to publish a prospectus for such offer. The expression �Prospectus Directive� means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member State), and includes any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant Member State and the expression �2010 PD Amending Directive� means Directive 2010/73/EU.

In relation to each Relevant Member State, each of the underwriters has represented and agreed that with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the �Relevant Implementation Date�) it has not made and will not make an offer of shares of our common stock which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this prospectus to the public in that Relevant Member State, except that it may, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of such shares of our common stock to the public in that Relevant Member State:

(a) to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

(b) to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the representatives for any such offer; or

(c) in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,
provided that no such offer of shares of our common stock shall result in a requirement for the publication by us or any underwriter of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

Each person in a Relevant Member State who receives any communication in respect of, or who acquires any shares of our common stock under, the offers to the public contemplated in this prospectus will be deemed to have represented, warranted and agreed to and with each underwriter that:

(a) it is a qualified investor within the meaning of the law in that Relevant Member State implementing Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive; and
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(b) in the case of any shares of our common stock acquired by it as a financial intermediary, as that term is used in Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, (i) the shares of our common stock acquired by it in the offer have not been acquired on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their offer or resale to, persons in any Relevant Member State other than qualified investors, as that term is defined in the Prospectus Directive, or in circumstances in which the prior consent of the underwriters has been given to the offer or resale; or (ii) where shares of our common stock have been acquired by it on behalf of persons in any Relevant Member State other than qualified investors, the offer of those shares of our common stock to it is not treated under the Prospectus Directive as having been made to such persons.
For the purposes of this provision, the expression an �offer to the public� in relation to any shares of our common stock in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and any shares of our common stock to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase any shares of our common stock, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State.

United Kingdom

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (�FSMA�)) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the shares of our common stock in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the shares of our common stock in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.
This prospectus is for distribution only to persons who (i) have professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (as amended, the �Financial Promotion Order�), (ii) are persons falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) (�high net worth companies, unincorporated associations etc�) of the Financial Promotion Order, (iii) are outside the United Kingdom, or (iv) are persons to whom an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000) in connection with the issue or sale of any securities may otherwise lawfully be communicated or caused to be communicated (all such persons together being referred to as �relevant persons�). This prospectus is directed only at relevant persons and must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant persons. Any investment or investment activity to which this document relates is available only to relevant persons and will be engaged in only with relevant persons.

Hong Kong

The shares may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to �professional investors� within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a �prospectus� within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only
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to persons outside Hong Kong or only to �professional investors� within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the �SFA�), (ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 by a relevant person which is: (a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries� rights and interest in that trust shall not be transferable for 6 months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the shares under Section 275 except: (1) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (2) where no consideration is given for the transfer; or (3) by operation of law.

Japan

The securities have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law) and each underwriter has agreed that it will not offer or sell any securities, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan, except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

Switzerland

The shares may not be publicly offered in Switzerland and will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange (�SIX�) or on any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. This document has been prepared without regard to the disclosure standards for issuance prospectuses under art. 652a or art. 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations or the disclosure standards for listing prospectuses under art. 27 ff. of the SIX Listing Rules or the listing rules of any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the shares or the offering may be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland.

Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the offering, us, or the shares have been or will be filed with or approved by any Swiss regulatory authority. In particular, this document will not be filed with, and the offer of shares will not be supervised by, the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA (�FINMA�), and the offer of shares has not been and will not be authorized under the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes (�CISA�). The investor protection afforded to acquirers of interests in collective investment schemes under the CISA does not extend to acquirers of shares.
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Dubai International Financial Centre

This prospectus relates to an Exempt Offer in accordance with the Offered Securities Rules of the Dubai Financial Services Authority (�DFSA�). This prospectus is intended for distribution only to persons of a type specified in the Offered Securities Rules of the DFSA. It must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person. The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any documents in connection with Exempt Offers. The DFSA has not approved this prospectus nor taken steps to verify the information set forth herein and has no responsibility for the prospectus. The shares to which this prospectus relates may be illiquid and/or subject to restrictions on their resale. Prospective purchasers of the shares offered should conduct their own due diligence on the shares. If you do not understand the contents of this prospectus you should consult an authorized financial advisor.

Australia

No placement document, prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document has been lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (�ASIC�), in relation to the offering. This prospectus does not constitute a prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document under the Corporations Act 2001 (the �Corporations Act�), and does not purport to include the information required for a prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document under the Corporations Act.

Any offer in Australia of the shares may only be made to persons (the �Exempt Investors�) who are �sophisticated investors� (within the meaning of section 708(8) of the Corporations Act), �professional investors� (within the meaning of section 708(11) of the Corporations Act) or otherwise pursuant to one or more exemptions contained in section 708 of the Corporations Act so that it is lawful to offer the shares without disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act.

The shares applied for by Exempt Investors in Australia must not be offered for sale in Australia in the period of 12 months after the date of allotment under the offering, except in circumstances where disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act would not be required pursuant to an exemption under section 708 of the Corporations Act or otherwise or where the offer is pursuant to a disclosure document which complies with Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act. Any person acquiring shares must observe such Australian on-sale restrictions.

This prospectus contains general information only and does not take account of the investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs of any particular person. It does not contain any securities recommendations or financial product advice. Before making an investment decision, investors need to consider whether the information in this prospectus is appropriate to their needs, objectives and circumstances, and, if necessary, seek expert advice on those matters.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of common stock will be passed upon for us by Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters in connection with the offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Shearman & Sterling LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements and schedule included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2017, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and elsewhere in the registration statement. Our financial statements and schedule are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP�s reports, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, has audited the financial statements of Cook Pharmica LLC as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 included in Catalent Inc.�s Form 8-K filed September 25, 2017, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and elsewhere in the registration statement. Cook Pharmica LLC�s financial statements are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP�s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are part of the registration statement on Form S-3 we filed with the SEC under the Securities Act and do not contain all the information set forth in the registration statement. Whenever a reference is made in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus to any of our contracts, agreements, or other documents, the reference may not be complete and you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement or the exhibits to the reports or other documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus for a copy of such contract, agreement, or other document. Because we are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, we file annual, quarterly, and current reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC�s website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC�s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room.

INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC�s rules allow us to �incorporate by reference� information into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below, which we have already filed with the SEC, and all documents subsequently filed with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act prior to the termination of the offering under this prospectus supplement (in each case, except as specifically included below, other than information that is deemed, under SEC rules, not to have been filed):

� our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017;
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� our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed on September 22, 2017 (solely those portions that were incorporated by reference into Part III of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017);

� the description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on July 31, 2014, including all amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating such description; and

� our current reports on Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2017 (but excluding Item 2.02 and Exhibit 99.1), September 19, 2017 and September 25, 2017.
Any statement made in this prospectus supplement or in the accompanying prospectus or in a document incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus supplement to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus supplement modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

You can obtain any of the filings incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus through us or from the SEC through the SEC�s website at http://www.sec.gov. We will provide, without charge, to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is delivered, upon written or oral request of such person, a copy of any or all of the reports and documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. You should direct requests for those documents to:

Catalent, Inc.

14 Schoolhouse Road

Somerset, New Jersey 08873

Attn: Corporate Secretary

Tel.: (732) 537-6200

Email: CorpSec@catalent.com

Our reports and documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus may also be found in the �Investors� section of our website at www.catalent.com. Our website and the information contained in it or connected to it shall not be deemed to be incorporated into this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any registration statement of which it forms a part.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors

Cook Group Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cook Pharmica LLC (a wholly owned subsidiary of Cook Group Incorporated) (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2016, and the related statements of income, parent company net investment in Pharmica, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor�s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cook Pharmica LLC at December 31, 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

July 31, 2017
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2016

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,500
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $ 1,225,629 33,576,816
Inventories 16,693,378
Prepaid expenses and other 1,578,755

Total current assets 51,850,449

Property and equipment, net 173,712,667

Total assets $ 225,563,116

Liabilities and invested equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8,029,775
Accrued liabilities:
Employee compensation 5,150,379
Business taxes 1,444,158
Sundry 1,474,639
Deferred revenue 5,925,967

Total current liabilities 22,024,918

Deferred tax liability 39,051
Deferred compensation 55,706

Total liabilities 22,119,675

Commitments and contingencies �

Invested equity:
Net parent investment 492,420,650
Retained earnings (288,977,209) 

Total invested equity 203,443,441

Total liabilities and invested equity $ 225,563,116

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Net revenues�external $ 168,335,087
Revenues�affiliates 9,441,724

Total revenues 177,776,811
Cost of revenues 121,861,156

Gross profit 55,915,655

Sales, marketing, and administrative 21,856,446
Research and development 984,628
Corporate allocation 2,951,629
Other expense, net 103,979

Income before income taxes 30,018,973

Income tax expense 93,944

Net income $ 29,925,029

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

STATEMENT OF PARENT COMPANY NET INVESTMENT IN PHARMICA

Retained
Earnings

Net
Parent

Investment

Total
Invested
Equity

Balance at January 1, 2016 $ (318,902,238) $ 509,656,218 $ 190,753,980
Net income 29,925,029 � 29,925,029
Net transactions with Cook Group � (17,235,568) (17,235,568) 

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ (288,977,209) $ 492,420,650 $ 203,443,441

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Operating activities
Net income $ 29,925,029
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 16,548,728
Deferred income taxes 65,574
Other 1,281,961
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (11,390,244) 
Inventories (3,247,261) 
Prepaid expenses and other 677,965
Accounts payable 2,402,178
Deferred revenue (759,718) 
Deferred compensation 20,268
Accrued liabilities and sundry (411,936) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 35,112,544

Investing activities
Additions of property, plant, and equipment (17,877,090) 

Net cash used in investing activities (17,877,090) 

Financing activities
Net transactions with Parent Company (17,235,568) 

Net cash used in financing activities (17,235,568) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (114) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,614

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,500

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2016

1. Business and Basis of Presentation

Cook Pharmica LLC (Pharmica or the Company) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cook Group Incorporated (Cook Group or Parent Company). Pharmica is a leading contract development and manufacturing organization (CDMO) centrally located in Bloomington, Indiana, that serves the biopharmaceutical industry. Pharmica provides a one-source, one-location model that was developed to give biopharmaceutical companies the opportunity to work with a single CDMO through all phases of a project. This unique model supports everything from process development to large-scale biologics manufacturing, from analytical program design to formulation development (liquid or lyophilized), and from aseptic filling in vials or syringes to final packaged goods.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a stand-alone basis and are derived from Cook Group�s consolidated financial statements and accounting records. The financial statements reflect Pharmica�s financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are presented as if Pharmica had operated on a stand-alone basis for the period presented.

The financial statements include the recognition of certain assets and liabilities that have historically been recorded at the Cook Group corporate level, but are specifically identifiable or otherwise attributable to Pharmica. Pharmica utilizes centralized functions of Cook Group to support its operations, and in return, Cook Group allocates certain expenses to Pharmica. Such expenses represent costs related, but not limited to, treasury, legal, accounting, insurance, information technology, payroll administration, human resources, and other services. These costs, together with an allocation of certain Cook Group overhead costs, are included within the corporate charges on the statement of income. Where it is possible to specifically attribute such expenses to activities of Pharmica, these amounts have been charged or credited directly to Pharmica without allocation or apportionment. Allocation of all other such expenses is based on a reasonable reflection of the utilization of service provided or benefits received by Pharmica during the period.

Management believes the assumptions underlying the stand-alone financial statements, including the assumptions regarding allocated expenses, reasonably reflect the utilization of services provided to or the benefit received by Pharmica during the periods presented. However, these shared expenses may not represent the amounts that would have been incurred had Pharmica operated autonomously or independently from Cook Group. Actual costs that would have been incurred if Pharmica had been a stand-alone company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structure and strategic decisions in various areas, including information technology and infrastructure. For an additional discussion of expense allocations, see Note 4.

Cook Group uses a centralized approach to cash management. Accordingly, cash and cash equivalents are held by Cook Group at the corporate level and were not attributed to Pharmica for the period presented. Transfers of cash, both to and from Cook Group�s centralized cash management system, are reflected as a component of Parent Company�s net investment in Pharmica on the balance sheet. Debt obligations of Cook Group have not been included in the financial statements of Pharmica because Pharmica�s assets do not collateralize the obligation between Cook Group and the debt holders.

The income tax provision on the statement of income has been calculated as if Pharmica were operating on a stand-alone basis and filed separate tax returns in the jurisdiction in which it operates. Pharmica�s operations have historically been included in the Cook Group U.S. federal and state tax returns. Cook Group�s global tax model has been developed based on its entire portfolio of businesses. Therefore, cash tax payments and items of current and deferred taxes may not be reflective of Pharmica�s actual tax balances prior to or subsequent to Pharmica operating as a stand-alone company.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic (ASC) 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the services have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company�s service arrangements contain multiple elements and are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of ASC 605-25, Revenue Recognition�Multiple-Element Arrangements. The Company determines the separate units of account and if the deliverable meets the criteria of a separate unit of accounting, the arrangement consideration is allocated to each deliverable based upon its relative selling price. In determining the best evidence of selling price of a unit of account, the Company utilizes management�s best estimate of selling price as vendor-specific objective evidence and third-party evidence of selling price are unable to be utilized by the Company.

The Company recognizes revenue when the service for each deliverable has been completed. In the case of manufacturing services, revenue is recognized when products pass quality assurance testing, where the risk of loss has been transferred, service obligations have been performed, and the Company is entitled to payment under the terms of the contract.

In the case of other services such as process validation, quality control, studies, and development, revenue is recognized at the completion of the service and the Company is entitled to payment under the terms of the contract.

Deferred revenue represents the amount of payment the Company has received in advance of services provided. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue when the related services have been completed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three months at the date of purchase.

Accounts Receivable

Pharmica performs periodic credit evaluations of customers� financial condition and generally does not require collateral. Accounts receivable are carried at their face amounts. Pharmica maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses in the collection of these receivables. Pharmica makes estimates regarding the future ability of its customers to make required payments based on historical experience, the age of the accounts receivable balances, credit quality of Pharmica�s customers, current economic conditions, expected future trends, and other factors that may affect customers� ability to pay. Individual accounts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted.

S-F-8

Edgar Filing: CapLease, Inc. - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 62



Table of Contents

COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Concentration of Risk

Pharmica had certain customers that individually accounted for 10% or more of the Company�s external net revenues, or whose accounts receivable balances individually represented 10% or more of the Company�s total accounts receivable.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, three customers accounted for 43% of external net revenues. At December 31, 2016, two customers represented 27% of accounts receivable.

Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities re-measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the accompanying financial statements. These valuation measurements are based upon the transparency of inputs (observable and unobservable) to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company�s market assumptions. These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1�Valuation is based on quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2�Valuation is based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, or other inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3�Valuation is based upon other unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to their short-term maturities.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market. Inventories at December 31 consisted of the following:

2016
Raw materials $ 19,465,563
Less allowance 2,772,275

$ 16,693,378

Property and Equipment

Land, buildings, equipment, and construction-in-progress are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method at rates that are intended to depreciate the cost of these various assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows: buildings�39 years, land improvements with identifiable useful lives�20 years, furnishings and equipment�3 to 7 years, automobiles�5 years.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following:

2016
Land $ 5,224,514
Buildings and improvements 142,656,456
Plant equipment 102,260,536
Office furniture and equipment 9,449,753
Automobiles 26,400
Construction-in-progress 32,063,757

291,601,416
Less accumulated depreciation 117,968,749

$ 173,712,667

The Company has various purchase commitments for raw materials, supplies and property and equipment incidental to the ordinary conduct of business. Additions to property and equipment that remain unpaid were $1,297,241 at December 31, 2016.

Pharmica identifies and records impairment losses on long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from their use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. Pharmica did not incur any impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company performs research and development on behalf of a Cook Group affiliate and is reimbursed for these costs as discussed in Note 4.

Advertising Costs

Pharmica expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs were $265,263 for the year ended December 31, 2016, and are classified as sales, marketing, and administrative expenses on the statement of income.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Pharmica reflects freight costs associated with shipping products to customers as a component of cost of revenues.

Net Parent Investment

Net parent investment represents Cook Group�s initial investment in Pharmica, subsequent allocations of expenses, and advances and receipts of cash resulting from the operations of Pharmica and Cook Group. The balance also is the result of Pharmica�s participation in Cook Group�s centralized cash management program to which all of Pharmica�s cash receipts are remitted and under which all cash disbursements are funded by Cook
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Group and includes amounts due from or owed to Cook Group. Other transactions affecting the net parent investment include general and administrative expenses incurred by Cook Group and allocated to Pharmica. Changes in amounts owed to or due from Cook Group are included in net transactions with parent company on the statement of cash flows as a financing activity.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are presented on a separate return basis as if Pharmica were a stand-alone taxable entity. Historically, Pharmica, as a disregarded entity, has been included as a component in the consolidated tax return of Cook Group. Pharmica accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability approach, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequence of events that have been recognized in Pharmica�s financial statements or income tax returns. Income taxes are recognized during the period in which the underlying transactions are recorded. Deferred taxes are provided for temporary differences between amounts of assets and liabilities as recorded for financial reporting purposes and such amounts as measured by tax laws. If Pharmica determines that a deferred tax asset arising from temporary differences is not likely to be utilized, Pharmica will establish a valuation allowance against that asset to record it at its expected realizable value.

Pharmica recognizes uncertain tax positions when it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by relevant taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update No. (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. Under the new standard, an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In order to do so, an entity would follow the five-step process for in-scope transactions: (1) identify the contract with a customer, (2) identify the separate performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. For non-public entities, the provisions of the new standard are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. An entity can apply the new revenue standard retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application in retained earnings. Pharmica is in the process of determining its approach to the adoption of this new revenue recognition standard, as well as the anticipated impact to the financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements�Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity�s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. ASU 2014-15 provides guidance about management�s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity�s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2014-15 is not expected to have an impact on Pharmica�s financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, to simplify the guidance on the subsequent measurement of inventory, excluding inventory measured
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

using last-in, first-out or the retail inventory method. Under the new standard, inventory should be at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The new accounting guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of ASU 2015-11 is not expected to have a material impact on Pharmica�s financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes. This update requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be classified as non-current on a statement of financial position. The update is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this standard during 2016, on a retrospective basis, and has reflected net deferred tax liability in the net non-current deferred income tax liability caption on its consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2016.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments�Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. ASU 2016-01 requires that (i) equity investments in unconsolidated entities that are not accounted for under the equity method of accounting generally be measured at fair value with changes recognized in net income (loss) and (ii) when the fair value option has been elected for financial liabilities, changes in fair value due to instrument-specific credit risk be recognized separately in other comprehensive income (loss). Additionally, ASU 2016-01 changes the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments. The amendments in this standard are effective for Pharmica in the fiscal year 2017, with early adoption not permitted. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The amendments in this update require lessees, among other things, to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for those leases classified as operating leases under previous authoritative guidance. This update also introduces new disclosure requirements for leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2020, but early application is permitted. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments�Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The amendment significantly changes how entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. The standard will require an �expected loss� model for instruments measured at amortized cost. For available-for-sale debt securities, entities will be required to record allowances rather than reduce the carrying amount, as they do today under the other-than-temporary impairment model. It also simplifies the accounting model for purchased credit-impaired debt securities and loans. ASU 2016-13 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2021. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendment clarifies how entities should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments on the statement of cash flows. The guidance also clarifies how the predominance principle should be applied when cash receipts and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2019, but early application is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2016-15 is not expected to have a material impact on Pharmica�s financial statements.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory. The amendment in this update requires companies to account for the income tax effects of intercompany sales and transfers of assets other than inventory (e.g., intangible assets) when the transfer occurs. The new guidance will require companies to defer the income tax effects only of intercompany transfers of inventory. ASU 2016-16 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2019, but early application is permitted. The guidance requires companies to apply a modified retrospective approach. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the financial statements.

3. Income Taxes

During the period presented in the financial statements, the Company, as a disregarded entity, was included in the tax grouping of the Parent Company. The income tax benefit included in these financial statements has been calculated using the separate return basis, as if the Company filed separate tax returns. The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31 consisted of the following:

2016
Current:
Federal $ �
State 28,370

Total current expense 28,370

Deferred:
Federal �
State 65,574

Total deferred tax expense 65,574

Total income tax expense $ 93,944

The following is a reconciliation of the effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31:

2016
U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 0.3
Valuation allowance release (34.2) 
Other (0.8) 

Effective tax rate 0.3% 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Income Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the future tax consequences of events that have already been recognized in the financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following at December 31:

2016
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory cost and related reserves $ 1,462,199
Net operating loss carryforwards 124,195,221
State tax credit carryforwards 9,395,718
Accrued expenses and allowances 539,306
Compensation and employee benefits 1,611,385
Intangibles 8,859,254
Deferred revenue 2,324,970

148,388,053
Valuation allowance 123,476,187

Total deferred tax assets 24,911,866

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment 24,850,678
Other, net 100,239

Total deferred tax liabilities 24,950,917

Deferred tax liabilities, net $ 39,051

As of December 31, 2016, Pharmica had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards, tax effected, of $124,195,221. These carryforwards will begin expiring in 2024. The Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets if, based on operating results and other objectively verifiable evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company has a three-year cumulative pretax loss, and a valuation allowance of $114,080,469 has been provided against the net operating loss. Pharmica has a state income tax credit carryforward of $9,395,718. This credit never expires. A full valuation allowance has been provided against this credit carryforward.

The Company considers all available evidence, both positive and negative when assessing the need for the valuation allowance. The Company will assess each reporting period whether it remains more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In the event the Company determines at a future time that it could realize its deferred tax assets in excess of the net amount recorded, the Company will reduce its deferred tax asset valuation allowance and decrease income tax expense in the period when the Company makes such determination.

Pharmica is included as part of the consolidated tax return of Cook Group. Cook Group is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, or local income tax examinations in major taxing jurisdictions for years prior to 2013. The Company has been audited by the Internal Revenue Service through 2013. The Company did not make any income tax payments during 2016.

The Company recognizes both accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recognized a benefit of $26,000 related to interest and penalties. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had accrued $11,000 for the payment of interest and penalties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Related-Party Transactions

All significant intercompany transactions between Pharmica and Cook Group have been included in the financial statements and are considered to be effectively settled for cash in the financial statements. In the statement of parent company net investment in Pharmica, the invested equity returned to Cook Group is the net of a variety of intercompany transactions, including, but not limited to, receipt of payment from customers, payment of trade payables and accrued liabilities, settlement of charges for allocated corporate costs, and payment of taxes by Cook Group on Pharmica�s behalf.

Pharmica utilizes centralized functions of Cook Group to support its operations, and in return, Cook Group allocates certain of its expenses to Pharmica. Such expenses represent costs related, but not limited to, treasury, legal, accounting, insurance, information technology, payroll administration, human resources, benefit plans, and other services. These costs, together with an allocation of Cook Group overhead costs, are included within the corporate charges caption on the statement of income. Where it is possible to specifically attribute such expenses to activities of Pharmica, these amounts have been charged or credited directly to Pharmica without allocation or apportionment. Allocation of all other such expenses is based on a reasonable reflection of the utilization of service provided or benefits received by Pharmica during the period presented, such as headcount, transactions processed, usage, or revenue. Pharmica�s management supports the methods used in allocating expenses and believes these methods to be reasonable estimates.

Nevertheless, the financial statements may not include all of the actual expenses that would have been incurred and may not reflect Pharmica�s results of operations, financial position, or cash flows had it been a stand-alone company during the period presented. It is not practicable to estimate actual costs that would have been incurred had Pharmica been a stand-alone company during the period presented.

Actual costs that would have been incurred if Pharmica had been a stand-alone company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structure and strategic decisions made in various areas, including information technology and infrastructure.

Pharmica provides contract manufacturing services to a Cook Group affiliate. The Company recognized $9,441,724 in revenue during 2016 related to these services.

Pharmica licenses intellectual property from a Cook Group affiliate and pays a royalty fee for its usage. The Company recognized royalty fees related to the license of $1,627,558 during 2016, which is included in other expense, net on the statement of income.

Pharmica performs research and development on behalf of a Cook Group affiliate and recharges the affiliate its total research and development cost, an overhead factor, and a 6% markup. The Company recognized research and development income related to this arrangement of $1,218,204 during 2016, which is included in other expense, net on the statement of income.

Pharmica leases space within its warehouse to Cook Group affiliates. The Company recognized lease income related to these arrangements of $601,927 during 2016 and is included in Other expense, net in the Statement of Income.

Pharmica utilizes an employee in France and is charged by a Cook Group affiliate for the employee�s salary, benefits, travel expenses, communication costs, and other cost plus a 6% markup. The Company recognized expense related to this arrangement of $288,828 during 2016, which is included in other expense, net on the statement of income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. Leases

Pharmica leases vehicles from a Cook Group affiliate. Leases expire at varying dates through May 15, 2021, and there are various renewal options. Future minimum rental commitments at December 31, 2016, for non-cancelable operating lease agreements are as follows:

2017 $ 77,277
2018 60,061
2019 21,586
2020 6,470
2021 3,000
Thereafter �

Total minimum lease payments $ 168,394

Rent expense amounted to $76,484 in 2016.

6. Commitments and Contingencies

Pharmica is a party to certain claims, legal actions, and complaints related to employment and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business or asserted by way of defense or counterclaim in actions filed by Pharmica. Management believes that its defenses are substantial in each of these matters and that Pharmica�s legal position can be successfully defended without material adverse effect on its financial statements.

There can be no assurance that Pharmica will prevail in any particular case. An adverse outcome in one or more cases in which Pharmica is involved would not have a material adverse effect on Pharmica�s financial position or liquidity but could possibly be material to the results of operations in any single accounting period.

Management believes that Pharmica�s risk-management practices, including insurance coverage, are adequate to protect against potential losses.

7. Employee Benefit Plans

Pharmica participates in a defined contribution, profit-sharing plan sponsored by Cook Group that covers substantially all employees. The employees may elect to contribute up to 50% of their annual compensation, subject to certain limitations. Cook Group matches 100% of employee contributions up to the first 4% of each employee�s wages. A discretionary company contribution can be made based upon a rate determined by Cook Group. Retirement expense related to this plan was $2,422,417 in 2016.

Pharmica also participates in a non-qualified, supplemental retirement benefit plan sponsored by Cook Group for selected employees. Cook Group has established a trust to provide funding for payments due under this deferred compensation plan. Retirement benefits are accumulated through participant annual elective compensation deferrals and discretionary Cook Group contributions. The plan�s fair value of assets was $43,115 at December 31, 2016. Employer contributions with respect to this plan were $12,591 in 2016.

8. Subsequent Events

Pharmica evaluated subsequent events for recognition or disclosure through July 31, 2017, the date the accompanying financial statements were available to be issued.
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CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

(Unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,500 $ 1,500
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $933,385 and $1,225,629, respectively 32,867,265 33,576,816
Inventories 16,242,858 16,693,378
Prepaid expenses and other 1,950,250 1,578,755

Total current assets 51,061,873 51,850,449

Property and equipment, net 171,695,010 173,712,667
Deferred tax asset 110,638,461 �

Total assets $ 333,395,344 $ 225,563,116

Liabilities and invested equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,870,480 $ 8,029,775
Accrued liabilities:
Employee compensation 5,794,490 5,150,379
Business taxes 1,182,026 1,444,158
Sundry 733,039 1,474,639
Deferred revenue 10,903,469 5,925,967

Total current liabilities 23,483,504 22,024,918

Deferred tax liability � 39,051
Deferred compensation 83,781 55,706

Total liabilities 23,567,285 22,119,675

Commitments and contingencies � �

Invested equity:
Net parent investment 473,745,759 492,420,650
Retained earnings (163,917,700) (288,977,209) 

Total invested equity 309,828,059 203,443,441

Total liabilities and invested equity $ 333,395,344 $ 225,563,116

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Six Months Ended June 30
2017 2016

(Unaudited)
Net revenues�external $ 83,937,158 $ 82,738,390
Revenues�affiliates 4,961,117 4,953,831

Total revenues 88,898,275 87,692,221
Cost of revenues 60,833,444 63,338,767

Gross profit 28,064,831 24,353,454

Sales, marketing, and administrative 10,966,927 11,238,204
Research and development 701,059 551,106
Corporate allocation 1,925,773 1,744,087
Other expense, net 89,075 195,716

Income before income taxes 14,381,997 10,624,341

Income tax benefit 110,677,512 170,508

Net income $ 125,059,509 $ 10,794,849

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF PARENT COMPANY NET INVESTMENT IN PHARMICA

Retained
Earnings

Net
Parent

Investment

Total
Invested
Equity

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ (288,977,209) $ 492,420,650 $ 203,443,441
Net income 125,059,509 � 125,059,509
Net transactions with Cook Group � (18,674,891) (18,674,891) 

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ (163,917,700) $ 473,745,759 $ 309,828,059

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Six Months Ended June 30
2017 2016

(Unaudited)
Operating activities
Net income $ 125,059,509 $ 10,794,849
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 8,279,021 8,256,116
Deferred income taxes (110,677,512) 26,523
Other 295,057 (59,867) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 494,085 (8,329,810) 
Inventories 370,929 (369,843) 
Prepaid expenses and other (371,495) 1,137,770
Accounts payable (2,398,174) 2,402,576
Deferred revenue 4,977,502 2,506,922
Deferred compensation 28,075 9,929
Accrued liabilities and sundry (359,621) (1,190,717) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 25,697,376 15,184,448

Investing activities
Additions of property and equipment (7,022,485) (10,653,301) 

Net cash used in investing activities (7,022,485) (10,653,301) 

Financing activities
Net transactions with Parent Company (18,674,891) (4,530,618) 

Net cash used in financing activities (18,674,891) (4,530,618) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents � 529
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,500 1,614

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,500 $ 2,143

See accompanying notes.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

1. Business and Basis of Presentation

These unaudited Condensed Financial Statements of Cook Pharmica LLC (�Pharmica� or the �Company�) should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financial Statements as of December 31, 2016 and for the year ended December 31, 2016. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�) have been condensed or omitted. The preparation of the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. In the opinion of management, these unaudited Condensed Financial Statements are fairly presented and all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods have been included; however, certain items included in these statements are based upon estimates for the entire year. The Condensed Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2016 has been derived from the audited financial statements at that date.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cook Group Incorporated (�Cook Group� or �Parent Company�). Pharmica is a leading contract development and manufacturing organization (�CDMO�) centrally located in Bloomington, Indiana, that serves the biopharmaceutical industry. Pharmica provides a one-source, one-location model that was developed to give biopharmaceutical companies the opportunity to work with a single CDMO through all phases of a project. This unique model supports everything from process development to large-scale biologics manufacturing, from analytical program design to formulation development (liquid or lyophilized), and from aseptic filling in vials or syringes to final packaged goods.

These unaudited Condensed Financial Statements reflect the historical unaudited Condensed Balance Sheets, unaudited Condensed Statements of Income, unaudited Condensed Statement of Parent Company Net Investment in Pharmica and unaudited Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the periods presented. The historical unaudited Condensed Financial Statements have been prepared on a stand-alone basis and are derived from Cook Group�s consolidated financial statements and accounting records. The financial statements reflect Pharmica�s financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These unaudited Condensed Financial Statements are presented as if Pharmica had operated on a stand-alone basis for the periods presented.

The unaudited Condensed Financial Statements include the recognition of certain assets and liabilities that have historically been recorded at the Cook Group corporate level, but are specifically identifiable or otherwise attributable to Pharmica. Pharmica utilizes centralized functions of Cook Group to support its operations and, in return, Cook Group allocates certain expenses to Pharmica. Such expenses represent costs related, but not limited to, treasury, legal, accounting, insurance, information technology, payroll administration, human resources, and other services. These costs, together with an allocation of certain Cook Group overhead costs, are included within the corporate charges caption on the unaudited Condensed Statements of Income. Where it is possible to specifically attribute such expenses to activities of Pharmica, these amounts have been charged or credited directly to Pharmica without allocation or apportionment. Allocation of all other such expenses is based on a reasonable reflection of the utilization of service provided or benefits received by Pharmica during the period.

Management believes the assumptions underlying the stand-alone unaudited Condensed Financial Statements, including the assumptions regarding allocated expenses, reasonably reflect the utilization of services provided to or the benefit received by Pharmica during the periods presented. However, these shared expenses may not represent the amounts that would have been incurred had Pharmica operated autonomously or independently from Cook Group. Actual costs that would have been incurred if Pharmica had been a stand-alone
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Business and Basis of Presentation (continued)

company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structure and strategic decisions in various areas, including information technology and infrastructure. For an additional discussion of expense allocations, see Note 4.

Cook Group uses a centralized approach to cash management. Accordingly, cash and cash equivalents are held by Cook Group at the corporate level and were not attributed to Pharmica for the periods presented. Transfers of cash, both to and from Cook Group�s centralized cash management system, are reflected as a component of Parent Company�s net investment in Pharmica on the unaudited Condensed Balance Sheets.

Cook Group�s revolving credit facility is guaranteed by the U.S. subsidiaries of Cook Group, including Pharmica. The balance of Cook Group�s revolving credit facility was $185,000,000 at June 30, 2017 and $170,000,000 at December 31, 2016. Pharmica is not the legal obligor of Cook Group�s revolving credit facility and it is not expected that Pharmica will be the legal obligor for borrowings under Cook Group�s revolving credit facility in the future in any planned or anticipated transactions which could transfer such obligations.

Debt obligations of Cook Group have not been included in the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements of Pharmica, because Pharmica�s assets do not collateralize the obligation between Cook Group and the debt holders.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (�ASC�) Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, the Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the services have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company�s service arrangements contain multiple elements and are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of ASC 605-25, Revenue Recognition�Multiple-Element Arrangements. The Company determines the separate units of account and if the deliverable meets the criteria of a separate unit of accounting, the arrangement consideration is allocated to each deliverable based upon its relative selling price. In determining the best evidence of selling price of a unit of account, the Company utilizes management�s best estimate of the selling price as vendor-specific objective evidence and third-party evidence of the selling price are unable to be utilized by the Company.

The Company recognizes revenue when the service for each deliverable has been completed. In the case of manufacturing services, revenue is recognized when products pass quality assurance testing, where the risk of loss has been transferred, service obligations have been performed, and the Company is entitled to payment under the terms of the contract.

In the case of other services, such as process validation, quality control, studies, and development, revenue is recognized at the completion of the service and the Company is entitled to payment under the terms of the contract.

Deferred revenue represents the amount of payment the Company has received in advance of services provided. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue when the related services have been completed.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Concentration of Risk

Pharmica had certain customers that individually accounted for 10% or more of the Company�s external net revenues, or whose accounts receivable balances individually represented 10% or more of the Company�s total accounts receivable.

For the six month periods ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, three customers accounted for 45% and 42% of external net revenues, respectively. At June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, two customers represented 22% and 27% of accounts receivable, respectively.

Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities re-measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the accompanying financial statements. These valuation measurements are based upon the transparency of inputs (observable and unobservable) to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company�s market assumptions. These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1�Valuation is based on quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2�Valuation is based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, or other inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3�Valuation is based upon other unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to their short-term maturities.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market. Inventories consisted of the following:

June 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

Raw materials $ 19,094,724 $ 19,465,653
Less allowance 2,851,866 2,772,275

$ 16,242,858 $ 16,693,378

Property and Equipment

Land, buildings, equipment, and construction-in-progress are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method at rates that are intended to depreciate the cost of these various assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows: buildings�39 years, land improvements with identifiable useful lives�20 years, furnishings and equipment�3 to 7 years, automobiles�5 years.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

June 30,
2017

December 31,
2016

Land $ 5,224,514 $ 5,224,514
Buildings and improvements 142,708,248 142,656,456
Plant equipment 102,554,368 102,260,536
Office furniture and equipment 9,491,086 9,449,753
Automobiles 26,400 26,400
Construction-in-progress 37,923,888 32,063,757

297,928,504 291,681,416
Less accumulated depreciation 126,233,494 117,968,749

$ 171,695,010 $ 173,712,667

The Company has various purchase commitments for raw materials, supplies and property and equipment incidental to the ordinary conduct of business. Additions to property and equipment that remain unpaid were $536,120 at June 30, 2017 and $1,297,241 at December 31, 2016.

Pharmica identifies and records impairment losses on long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from their use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. Pharmica did not incur any impairment charges for the six month periods ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

Net Parent Investment

Net parent investment represents Cook Group�s initial investment in Pharmica, subsequent allocations of expenses, and advances and receipts of cash resulting from the operations of Pharmica and Cook Group. The balance also is the result of Pharmica�s participation in Cook Group�s centralized cash management program to which all of Pharmica�s cash receipts are remitted and under which all cash disbursements are funded by Cook Group and includes amounts due from or owed to Cook Group. Other transactions affecting the net parent investment include general and administrative expenses incurred by Cook Group and allocated to Pharmica. Changes in amounts owed to or due from Cook Group are included in Net Transactions with Parent Company on the unaudited Condensed Statements of Cash Flows as a financing activity.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. Under the new standard, an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In order to do so, an entity would follow the five-step process for in-scope transactions: (1) identify the contract with a customer, (2) identify the separate performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. An entity can apply the new revenue standard retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application in retained earnings. ASU 2014-09 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2019. Pharmica is in the process of determining its approach to the adoption of this new revenue recognition standard, as well as the anticipated impact to the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements�Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity�s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. ASU 2014-15 provides guidance about management�s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity�s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 was adopted by Pharmica and did not have an impact on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, to simplify the guidance on the subsequent measurement of inventory, excluding inventory measured using the last-in, first-out or the retail inventory method. Under the new standard, inventory should be at the lower of cost and net realizable value. ASU 2015-11 is effective for Pharmica for interim periods beginning in fiscal year 2018. The adoption of ASU 2015-11 is not expected to have a material impact on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which simplifies the presentation of deferred income taxes. This update requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be classified as non-current on a statement of financial position. The update is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this standard during 2016 on a retrospective basis, and has reflected net deferred tax liability in the net non-current deferred income tax liability caption on its unaudited Condensed Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The amendments in this update require lessees, among other things, to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on their balance sheets for those leases classified as operating leases under previous authoritative guidance. This update also introduces new disclosure requirements for leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2020, but early application is permitted. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments�Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The amendment significantly changes how entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. The standard will require an �expected loss� model for instruments measured at amortized cost. For available-for-sale debt securities, entities will be required to record allowances rather than reduce the carrying amount, as they do today under the other-than-temporary impairment model. It also simplifies the accounting model for purchased credit-impaired debt securities and loans. ASU 2016-13 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2021. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendment clarifies how entities should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments on the statement of cash flows. The guidance also clarifies how the predominance
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

principle should be applied when cash receipts and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2019, but early application is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2016-15 is not expected to have a material impact on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventory. The amendment in this update requires companies to account for the income tax effects of intercompany sales and transfers of assets other than inventory (e.g., intangible assets) when the transfer occurs. The new guidance will require companies to defer the income tax effects only of intercompany transfers of inventory. ASU 2016-16 will be effective for Pharmica in fiscal year 2019, but early application is permitted. The guidance requires companies to apply a modified retrospective approach. Pharmica is currently evaluating the impact of this update on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

3. Income Taxes

The income taxes have been prepared on a separate return basis as if the Company was a stand-alone entity. During the periods presented in the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements, the Company, as a disregarded entity, was included in the tax grouping of the Parent Company. The Company�s tax results as presented are not reflective of the results that the Company will generate in the future or would have available for future use in another consolidated group.

The Company records income tax expense (benefit) during interim periods based on its best estimate of the full year�s effective tax rate. However, income tax expense relating to adjustments for certain discrete events are accounted for in the interim periods in which such events occur. The Company�s effective income tax rate was (769.6%) during the six months ended June 30, 2017, compared to an effective tax rate of (1.6%) during the six months ended June 30, 2016.

The effective tax rate for 2017 of (769.6%) was favorably impacted by (804.5%) related to the release of the valuation allowance previously applied against the Company�s net deferred tax assets, primarily consisting of net operating losses and state tax credit carryforwards. The Company determined that the valuation allowance of $123,476,187 should be reversed due to the favorable operating results and no longer being in a three-year cumulative pre-tax loss. The net operating losses and state tax credit carryforwards are expected to be utilized during 2017 and future years.

The effective tax rate for 2016 of (1.6%) was favorably impacted by (34.2%) related to a reduction in the valuation allowance previously provided against operating losses.

Pharmica is included as part of the consolidated tax return of Cook Group. Cook Group is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, or local income tax examinations in major taxing jurisdictions for years prior to 2013. The Company has been audited by the Internal Revenue Service through 2013.

4. Related-Party Transactions

All significant intercompany transactions between Pharmica and Cook Group have been included in the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements and are considered to be effectively settled for cash in the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements. In the unaudited Condensed Statements of Parent Company Net Investment in Pharmica, the invested equity returned to Cook Group is net of a variety of intercompany transactions including,
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Related-Party Transactions (continued)

but not limited to, receipt of payment from customers, payment of trade payables and accrued liabilities, settlement of charges for allocated corporate costs, and payment of taxes by Cook Group on Pharmica�s behalf.

Pharmica utilizes centralized functions of Cook Group to support its operations and, in return, Cook Group allocates certain of its expenses to Pharmica. Such expenses represent costs related, but not limited to, treasury, legal, accounting, insurance, information technology, payroll administration, human resources, benefit plans, and other services. These costs, together with an allocation of Cook Group overhead costs, are included within the corporate charges caption on the unaudited Condensed Statements of Income. Where it is possible to specifically attribute such expenses to activities of Pharmica, these amounts have been charged or credited directly to Pharmica without allocation or apportionment. Allocation of all other such expenses is based on a reasonable reflection of the utilization of service provided or benefits received by Pharmica during the period presented, such as headcount, transactions processed, usage, or revenue. Pharmica�s management supports the methods used in allocating expenses and believes these methods to be reasonable estimates.

Nevertheless, the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements may not include all of the actual expenses that would have been incurred and may not reflect Pharmica�s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows had it been a stand-alone company during the periods presented. It is not practicable to estimate actual costs that would have been incurred had Pharmica been a stand-alone company during the periods presented.

Actual costs that would have been incurred if Pharmica had been a stand-alone company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structure and strategic decisions made in various areas, such as information technology and infrastructure.

Pharmica provides contract manufacturing services to a Cook Group affiliate. The Company recognized $4,961,117 and $4,953,831 in revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, related to these services.

Pharmica licenses intellectual property from a Cook Group affiliate and pays a royalty fee for its usage. The Company recognized royalty fees related to the license of $728,835 and $944,072 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in other expense, net on the unaudited Condensed Statements of Income.

Pharmica performs research and development on behalf of a Cook Group affiliate and recharges the affiliate for its total research and development cost, an overhead factor, and a 6% markup. The Company recognized research and development income related to this arrangement of $638,271 and $582,563 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in other expense, net on the unaudited Condensed Statements of Income.

Pharmica leases space within its warehouse to Cook Group affiliates. The Company recognized lease income related to these arrangements of $160,686 and $313,716 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is included in other expense, net in the unaudited Condensed Statements of Income.

Pharmica utilizes an employee in France and is charged by a Cook Group affiliate for the employee�s salary, benefits, travel expenses, communication costs, and other costs plus a 6% markup. The Company recognized expense related to this arrangement of $156,394 and $149,118 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which is included in other expense, net on the unaudited Condensed Statements of Income.
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COOK PHARMICA LLC

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. Commitments and Contingencies

Pharmica is a party to certain claims, legal actions, and complaints related to employment and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business or asserted by way of defense or counterclaim in actions filed by Pharmica. Management believes that its defenses are substantial in each of these matters and that Pharmica�s legal position can be successfully defended without material adverse effect on the unaudited Condensed Financial Statements.

There can be no assurance that Pharmica will prevail in any particular case. An adverse outcome in one or more cases in which Pharmica is involved would not have a material adverse effect on Pharmica�s financial position or liquidity, but could possibly be material to the results of operations in any single accounting period.

Management believes that Pharmica�s risk-management practices, including insurance coverage, are adequate to protect against potential losses.

6. Subsequent Events

Pharmica evaluated subsequent events for recognition or disclosure through September 8, 2017, the date the accompanying financial statements were available to be issued.
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Prospectus

Catalent, Inc.

Common Stock

We and any selling stockholder may offer and sell from time to time shares of our common stock.

We will determine when we sell shares of our common stock, which may be sold on a continuous or delayed basis directly, to or through agents, dealers or underwriters as designated from time to time, or through a combination of these methods. We reserve the sole right to accept, and we and any agents, dealers and underwriters reserve the right to reject, in whole or in part, any proposed purchase of shares of our common stock. If any agents, dealers or underwriters are involved in the sale of any shares of our common stock, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth any applicable commissions or discounts payable to them. Our net proceeds from the sale of the shares of our common stock will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. We also may provide you with a free writing prospectus that includes this information. In addition, certain selling stockholders may offer and sell shares of our common stock from time to time, together or separately, in amounts, at prices and on terms that will be determined at the time of any such offering.

Each time that we or any selling stockholders sell shares of our common stock using this prospectus, we or any selling stockholders will provide a prospectus supplement and attach it to this prospectus and may also provide you with a free writing prospectus. The prospectus supplement and any free writing prospectus will contain more specific information about the offering and the shares of our common stock being offered, including the names of any selling stockholders, if applicable, the prices and our net proceeds from the sales of those shares of our common stock. The prospectus supplement or free writing prospectus may also add, update, change or clarify information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus. This prospectus may not be used to sell shares of our common stock unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement describing the method and terms of the offering.

You should carefully read this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement and free writing prospectus, together with any documents we incorporate by reference, before you invest in our common stock.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol �CTLT�.

Investing in our common stock involves risks. You should carefully consider the risk factors referred to on page 2 of this prospectus, in any applicable prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference in this prospectus before investing in our common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Prospectus dated June 6, 2016.
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This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) using a �shelf� registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we and/or certain selling stockholders, if applicable, may, from time to time, offer and/or sell shares of our common stock in one or more offerings or resales. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the shares of our common stock that we and/or certain selling stockholders may offer. Each time we sell shares of our common stock using this prospectus, we will provide a prospectus supplement and attach it to this prospectus and may also provide you with a free writing prospectus. The prospectus supplement and any free writing prospectus will contain more specific information about the offering and the shares of our common stock being offered, including the names of any selling stockholders, if applicable, the prices and our net proceeds (if any) from the sales of those shares of common stock. The prospectus supplement may also add, update, change or clarify information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and the information in the prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information in the prospectus supplement.

The rules of the SEC allow us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus. This means that important information is contained in other documents that are considered to be a part of this prospectus. Additionally, information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. You should carefully read both this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement together with the additional information that is incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference in this prospectus. See �Information Incorporated by Reference� before making an investment in our common stock. This prospectus contains summaries of certain provisions contained in some of the documents described herein, but reference is made to the actual documents for complete information. All of the summaries are qualified in their entirety by the actual documents. Copies of the documents referred to herein have been filed or will be filed or incorporated by reference as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. The registration statement, including the exhibits and documents incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference in this prospectus, can be read on the SEC website or at the SEC offices mentioned under the heading �Where You Can Find More Information.�

THIS PROSPECTUS MAY NOT BE USED TO SELL ANY SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY A PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT.

Neither the delivery of this prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement nor any sale made using this prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement implies that there has been no change in our affairs or that the information in this prospectus or in any applicable prospectus supplement is correct as of any date after their respective dates. You should not assume that the information included in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus prepared by us, is accurate as of any date other than the date(s) on the front covers of those documents. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or a prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone to give you different information, and if you are given any information that is not contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or a prospectus supplement,

i
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you must not rely on that information. We and any selling stockholders are not making an offer to sell securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of such securities is not permitted.

Except where the context requires otherwise, references in this prospectus to �Catalent,� the �Company,� �we,� �us,� and �our� refer to Catalent, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries. In this prospectus, when we refer to our fiscal years, we say �fiscal� and the year number, as in �fiscal 2015,� which refers to our fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

We refer in this prospectus to (i) investment funds associated with or designated by The Blackstone Group L.P. as �Blackstone� or �Sponsor� and (ii) our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 as amended by Amendment No. 1 to such Annual Report on Form 10-K/A as our �2015 Form 10-K.�

ii
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement and does not contain all of the information you should consider before investing in shares of our common stock. You should read this entire prospectus, any prospectus supplement, the documents incorporated herein or therein and any free writing prospectus prepared by us or on our behalf carefully, including the section entitled �Risk Factors� and the financial statements and the related notes incorporated by reference in this prospectus, before you decide to invest in shares of our common stock.

Our Company

We are the leading global provider of advanced delivery technologies and development solutions for drugs, biologics and consumer health products. With over 80 years serving the industry, we have proven expertise in bringing more customer products to market faster, enhancing product performance and ensuring reliable clinical and commercial product supply. We employ approximately 8,900 people, including over 1,000 scientists and technicians, at 31 facilities across five continents and in fiscal 2015 generated more than $1.8 billion in annual revenue.

For a description of our business, financial condition, results of operations and other important information regarding us, we refer you to our filings with the SEC incorporated by reference in this prospectus. For instructions on how to find copies of these documents, see �Where You Can Find More Information.�

Catalent, Inc. is a Delaware corporation. Our principal executive offices are located at 14 Schoolhouse Road, Somerset, New Jersey 08873, and our telephone number is (732) 537-6200. We maintain a website at www.catalent.com. The information contained on or accessible through our website neither constitutes part of this prospectus nor is incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

1
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves risks. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties discussed in our 2015 Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus, under the caption �Risk Factors,� as well as other risks and uncertainties discussed under this caption or any similar caption in the other documents and reports that we file with the SEC on or after the date of this prospectus that are incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus as well as other risks and uncertainties described in any applicable prospectus supplement or free writing prospectus that we provide you in connection with an offering of common stock pursuant to this prospectus. These risks and uncertainties could materially affect our business, results of operations or financial condition and cause the value of our common stock to decline. You could lose all or part of your investment.

2
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus (including any prospectus supplement and the information incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus) and any free writing prospectus that we may provide to you in connection with an offering of our common stock described in this prospectus contain forward-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to, among other things, our operations and financial performance. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts. In some cases, you can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as �outlook,� �believes,� �expects,� �potential,� �continues,� �may,� �will,� �should,� �could,� �seeks,� �approximately,� �predicts,� �intends,� �plans,� �estimates,� �anticipates� or the negative version of these words or other comparable words. Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there are or will be important factors that could cause actual outcomes or results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements. We believe these factors include but are not limited to those described under �Risk Factors� in the 2015 Form 10-K. These factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included, incorporated by reference or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.

TRADEMARKS AND SERVICE MARKS

�ADVASEPT®,� �GPEx®,� �OptiForm®,� �Liqui-Gels®,� �VegiCaps®,� �Zydis®� and �Zydis®Nano� are our registered U.S. and/or foreign trademarks. This prospectus also includes trademarks and trade names owned by other parties, and these trademarks and trade names are the property of their respective owners. We use certain other trademarks and service marks, including Easyburst�, Galacorin�, OptiGel�, OptiGel Bio�, OptiMelt�, OptiPact�, OptiShell�, Savorgel�, SMARTag�, Softdrop� and Zydis Bio� on an unregistered basis in the United States.

Solely for convenience, the trademarks, service marks and trade names referred to in this prospectus may appear without the ® and � symbols, but such references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that we will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our rights or the rights of the applicable licensors to these trademarks, service marks, and trade names.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

In the case of a sale of shares of our common stock by us, the use of proceeds will be specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. In the case of a sale of shares of our common stock by any selling stockholders, we will not receive any of the proceeds from such sale.

4
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SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

Information about selling stockholders, where applicable, will be set forth in a prospectus supplement, in a post-effective amendment or in filings we will make with the SEC, which are incorporated into this prospectus by reference.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a description of the material terms of, and is qualified in its entirety by, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, each of which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Our purpose is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may now or hereafter be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the �DGCL�). Our authorized capital stock consists of 1,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share. No shares of preferred stock are issued or outstanding as of the date of this prospectus. Unless our board of directors determines otherwise, we will issue all shares of our capital stock in uncertificated form.

Common Stock

Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders, including the election or removal of directors. The holders of our common stock do not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors. Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up and after payment in full of all amounts required to be paid to creditors and to the holders of preferred stock having liquidation preferences, if any, the holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive pro rata our remaining assets available for distribution. Holders of our common stock do not have preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights. Our common stock is not subject to further calls or assessment by us. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the common stock. All shares of our common stock are fully paid and non-assessable. The rights, powers, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock will be subject to those of the holders of any shares of our preferred stock we may authorize and issue in the future.

Preferred Stock

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to establish one or more series of preferred stock (including convertible preferred stock). Unless required by law or by the NYSE, the authorized shares of preferred stock will be available for issuance without further action by you. Our board of directors may determine, with respect to any series of preferred stock, the powers, including preferences and relative participations, optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions, of that series, including, without limitation:

� the designation of the series;

� the number of shares of the series, which our board of directors may, except where otherwise provided in the preferred stock designation, increase (but not above the total number of authorized shares of the class) or decrease (but not below the number of shares then outstanding);

� whether dividends, if any, will be cumulative or non-cumulative and the dividend rate of the series;

� the dates at which dividends, if any, will be payable;

� the redemption rights and price or prices, if any, for shares of the series;

� the terms and amounts of any sinking fund provided for the purchase or redemption of shares of the series;

� the amounts payable on shares of the series in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our affairs;

� whether the shares of the series will be convertible into shares of any other class or series, or any other security, of us or any other corporation, and, if so, the specification of the other class or series or other security, the conversion price or prices or rate or rates, any rate adjustments, the date or dates as of which the shares will be convertible and all other terms and conditions upon which the conversion may be made;
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� restrictions on the issuance of shares of the same series or of any other class or series; and

� the voting rights, if any, of the holders of the series.
We could issue a series of preferred stock that could, depending on the terms of the series, impede or discourage an acquisition attempt or other transaction that some, or a majority, of the holders of our common stock might believe to be in their best interests or in which the holders of our common stock might receive a premium for their common stock over the market price of the common stock. Additionally, the issuance of preferred stock may adversely affect the rights of holders of our common stock by restricting dividends on the common stock, diluting the voting power of the common stock or subordinating the liquidation rights of the common stock. As a result of these or other factors, the issuance of preferred stock could have an adverse impact on the market price of our common stock.

Dividends

The DGCL permits a corporation to declare and pay dividends out of �surplus� or, if there is no �surplus,� out of its net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal year. �Surplus� is defined as the excess of the net assets of the corporation over the amount determined to be the capital of the corporation by the board of directors. The capital of the corporation is typically calculated to be (and cannot be less than) the aggregate par value of all issued shares of capital stock. Net assets equals the fair value of total assets minus total liabilities. The DGCL also provides that dividends may not be paid out of net profits if, after the payment of the dividend, capital is less than the capital represented by the outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets.

Declaration and payment of any dividend will be subject to the discretion of our board of directors. The time and amount of dividends will be dependent upon our financial condition, operations, cash requirements and availability, debt repayment obligations, capital expenditure needs and restrictions in our debt instruments, industry trends, the provisions of Delaware law affecting the payment of distributions to stockholders and any other factors our board of directors may consider relevant.

We have no current plans to pay dividends on our common stock. Any decision to declare and pay dividends in the future will be made at the sole discretion of our board of directors and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, cash requirements, financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant. Because we are a holding company and have no direct operations, we will only be able to pay dividends from funds we receive from our subsidiaries. In addition, our ability to pay dividends will be limited by covenants in our existing indebtedness and may be limited by the agreements governing other indebtedness we or our subsidiaries incur in the future.

Annual Stockholder Meetings

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that annual stockholder meetings will be held at a date, time and place, if any, as exclusively selected by our board of directors. To the extent permitted under applicable law, we may conduct meetings by remote communications, including by webcast.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws and Certain Provisions of Delaware Law

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and the DGCL contain provisions, which are summarized in the following paragraphs, that are intended to enhance the likelihood of continuity and stability in the composition of our board of directors. These provisions are intended to avoid costly takeover battles, reduce our vulnerability to a hostile change of control and enhance the ability of our board of directors to maximize stockholder value in connection with any unsolicited offer to acquire us.
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However, these provisions may have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, deter or prevent a merger or acquisition of the Company by means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or other takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider in its best interest, including those attempts that might result in a premium over the prevailing market price for the shares of common stock held by stockholders.

Authorized but Unissued Capital Stock

Delaware law does not require stockholder approval for any issuance of authorized shares. However, the listing requirements of the NYSE, which would apply if and so long as our common stock remains listed on the NYSE, require stockholder approval of certain issuances equal to or exceeding 20% of the then outstanding voting power or then outstanding number of shares of common stock. Additional shares that may be used in the future may be issued for a variety of corporate purposes, including future public offerings, to raise additional capital or to facilitate acquisitions.

Our board of directors may generally issue preferred shares on terms calculated to discourage, delay or prevent a change of control of the Company or the removal of our management. Moreover, our authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock will be available for future issuances without stockholder approval and could be utilized for a variety of corporate purposes, including future offerings to raise additional capital, to facilitate acquisitions and employee benefit plans.

One of the effects of the existence of unissued and unreserved common stock or preferred stock may be to enable our board of directors to issue shares to persons friendly to current management, which issuance could render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of the Company by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise, and thereby protect the continuity of our management and possibly deprive our stockholders of opportunities to sell their shares of common stock at prices higher than prevailing market prices.

Classified Board of Directors

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that our board of directors will be divided into three classes of directors, with the classes to be as nearly equal in number as possible, and with the directors serving three-year terms. As a result, approximately one-third of our board of directors will be elected each year. The classification of directors will have the effect of making it more difficult for stockholders to change the composition of our board of directors. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that, subject to any rights of holders of preferred stock to elect additional directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors will be fixed from time to time exclusively pursuant to a resolution adopted by the board of directors.

Business Combinations

We have opted out of Section 203 of the DGCL; however, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains similar provisions providing that we may not engage in certain �business combinations� with any �interested stockholder� for a three-year period following the time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless:

� prior to such time, our board of directors approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

� upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of our voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding certain shares; or

� at or subsequent to that time, the business combination is approved by our board of directors and by the affirmative vote of holders of at least 66-2/3% of our outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.
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Generally, a �business combination� includes a merger, asset or stock sale or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. Subject to certain exceptions, an �interested stockholder� is a person who, together with that person�s affiliates and associates, owns, or within the previous three years owned, 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock. For purposes of this section only, �voting stock� has the meaning given to it in Section 203 of the DGCL.

Under certain circumstances, this provision will make it more difficult for a person who would be an �interested stockholder� to effect various business combinations with us for a three-year period. This provision may encourage companies interested in acquiring us to negotiate in advance with our board of directors because the stockholder approval requirement would be avoided if our board of directors approves either the business combination or the transaction which results in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder. These provisions also may have the effect of preventing changes in our board of directors and may make it more difficult to accomplish transactions which stockholders may otherwise deem to be in their best interests.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that Blackstone and its affiliates, and any of their respective direct or indirect transferees and any group as to which such persons are a party, do not constitute �interested stockholders� for purposes of this provision.

Removal of Directors; Vacancies

Under the DGCL, unless otherwise provided in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, directors serving on a classified board may be removed by the stockholders only for cause. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that directors may be removed with or without cause upon the affirmative vote of a majority in voting power of all outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class; provided, however, at any time when Blackstone and its affiliates beneficially own in the aggregate, less than 40% of the voting power of all outstanding shares of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, directors may only be removed for cause, and only upon the affirmative vote of holders of at least 66-2/3% of the voting power of all the then outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class. In addition, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation also provides that, subject to the rights granted to one or more series of preferred stock then outstanding or the rights granted under the stockholders agreement with Blackstone, any vacancies on our board of directors will be filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors, even if less than a quorum, by a sole remaining director or by the stockholders; provided, however, at any time when Blackstone and its affiliates beneficially own, in the aggregate, less than 40% in voting power of the stock of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, any newly created directorship on the board of directors that results from an increase in the number of directors and any vacancy occurring in the board of directors may only be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director (and not by the stockholders). Since March 9, 2015, Blackstone and its affiliates have beneficially owned, in the aggregate, less than 40% of the voting power of the stock of the Company.

No Cumulative Voting

Under Delaware law, the right to vote cumulatively does not exist unless the certificate of incorporation specifically authorizes cumulative voting. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not authorize cumulative voting. Therefore, stockholders holding a majority of the shares of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors will be able to elect all our directors.

Special Stockholder Meetings

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that special meetings of our stockholders may be called at any time only by or at the direction of the board of directors or the chairman of the board of
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directors; provided, however, at any time when Blackstone and its affiliates beneficially own, in the aggregate, at least 40% in voting power of the stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, special meetings of our stockholders shall also be called by the board of directors or the chairman of the board of directors at the request of Blackstone and its affiliates. Our amended and restated bylaws prohibit the conduct of any business at a special meeting other than as specified in the notice for such meeting. These provisions may have the effect of deferring, delaying or discouraging hostile takeovers, or changes in control or management of the Company. Since March 9, 2015, Blackstone and its affiliates have beneficially owned, in the aggregate, less than 40% of the voting power of the stock of the Company.

Director Nominations and Stockholder Proposals

Our amended and restated bylaws establish advance notice procedures with respect to stockholder proposals and the nomination of candidates for election as directors, other than nominations made by or at the direction of the board of directors or a committee of the board of directors. In order for any matter to be �properly brought� before a meeting, a stockholder will have to comply with advance notice requirements and provide us with certain information. Generally, to be timely, a stockholder�s notice must be received at our principal executive offices neither less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the first anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders. Our amended and restated bylaws also specify requirements as to the form and content of a stockholder�s notice. These provisions will not apply to Blackstone and its affiliates so long as the stockholders agreement remains in effect. Our amended and restated bylaws allow the chairman of the meeting at a meeting of the stockholders to adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of meetings which may have the effect of precluding the conduct of certain business at a meeting if the rules and regulations are not followed. These provisions may also defer, delay or discourage a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer�s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to influence or obtain control of the Company.

Stockholder Action by Written Consent

Pursuant to Section 228 of the DGCL, any action required to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is or are signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares of our stock entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, unless our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation precludes stockholder action by written consent at any time when Blackstone and its affiliates own, in the aggregate, less than 40% in voting power of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors. Since March 9, 2015, Blackstone and its affiliates have beneficially owned, in the aggregate, less than 40% of the voting power of the stock of the Company.

Supermajority Provisions

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that the board of directors is expressly authorized to make, alter, amend, change, add to, rescind or repeal, in whole or in part, our bylaws without a stockholder vote in any matter not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Delaware or our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. For as long as Blackstone and its affiliates beneficially own, in the aggregate, at least 40% in voting power of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, any amendment, alteration, change, addition or repeal of our bylaws by our stockholders requires the affirmative vote of a majority in voting power of the outstanding shares of our stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on such amendment, alteration, rescission or repeal. At any time when Blackstone and its affiliates beneficially own, in the aggregate, less than 40% in voting power of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, any amendment, alteration, rescission or repeal of our bylaws by our stockholders requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66-2/3% in voting power of all the then outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class.
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The DGCL provides generally that the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class, is required to amend a corporation�s certificate of incorporation, unless the certificate of incorporation requires a greater percentage.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that at any time when Blackstone and its affiliates beneficially own, in the aggregate, less than 40% in voting power of our stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, the following provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation may be amended, altered, repealed or rescinded only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66-2/3% in voting power of the then outstanding shares of our stock entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class:

� the provision requiring a 66-2/3% supermajority vote for stockholders to amend our bylaws;

� the provisions providing for a classified board of directors (the election and term of our directors);

� the provisions regarding resignation and removal of directors;

� the provisions regarding competition and corporate opportunities;

� the provisions regarding entering into business combinations with interested stockholders;

� the provisions regarding stockholder action by written consent;

� the provisions regarding calling special meetings of stockholders;

� the provisions regarding filling vacancies on our board of directors and newly created directorships;

� the provisions eliminating monetary damages for breaches of fiduciary duty by a director; and

� the amendment provision requiring that the above provisions be amended only with a 66-2/3% supermajority vote.
The combination of the classification of our board of directors, the lack of cumulative voting and the supermajority voting requirements will make it more difficult for our existing stockholders to replace our board of directors as well as for another party to obtain control of us by replacing our board of directors. Because our board of directors has the power to retain and discharge our officers, these provisions could also make it more difficult for existing stockholders or another party to effect a change in management.

These provisions may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or delaying or preventing changes in control of our management or the Company, such as a merger, reorganization or tender offer. These provisions are intended to enhance the likelihood of continued stability in the composition of our board of directors and its policies and to discourage certain types of transactions that may involve an actual or threatened acquisition of the Company. These provisions are designed to reduce our vulnerability to an unsolicited acquisition proposal. The provisions are also intended to discourage certain tactics that may be used in proxy fights. However, such provisions could have the effect of discouraging others from making tender offers for our shares and, as a consequence, they also may inhibit fluctuations in the market price of our shares that could result from actual or rumored takeover attempts. Such provisions may also have the effect of preventing changes in management.

Since March 9, 2015, Blackstone and its affiliates have beneficially owned, in the aggregate, less than 40% of the voting power of the stock of the Company.

Dissenters� Rights of Appraisal and Payment

Under the DGCL, with certain exceptions, our stockholders will have appraisal rights in connection with a merger or consolidation of us. Pursuant to the DGCL, stockholders who properly request and perfect appraisal rights in connection with such merger or consolidation will have the right to receive payment of the fair value of their shares as determined by the Delaware Court of Chancery.
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Stockholders� Derivative Actions

Under the DGCL, any of our stockholders may bring an action in our name to procure a judgment in our favor, also known as a derivative action; provided that the stockholder bringing the action is a holder of our shares at the time of the transaction to which the action relates or such stockholder�s stock thereafter devolved by operation of law.

Exclusive Forum

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that unless we consent to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for any (i) derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of our Company, (ii) action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director or officer of our Company to the Company or the Company�s stockholders, creditors or other constituents, (iii) action asserting a claim against the Company or any director or officer of the Company arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws or (iv) action asserting a claim against the Company or any director or officer of the Company governed by the internal affairs doctrine, in each such case subject to said Court of Chancery having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as defendants in such action. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of our Company shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the forum provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

Conflicts of Interest

Delaware law permits corporations to adopt provisions renouncing any interest or expectancy in certain opportunities that are presented to the corporation or its officers, directors or stockholders. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, to the maximum extent permitted from time to time by Delaware law, renounces any interest or expectancy that we have in, or right to be offered an opportunity to participate in, specified business opportunities that are from time to time presented to our officers, directors or stockholders or their respective affiliates, other than those officers, directors, stockholders or affiliates who are our or our subsidiaries� employees. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, none of Blackstone or any of its affiliates or any director who is not employed by us (including any non-employee director who serves as one of our officers in both his director and officer capacities) or his or her affiliates will have any duty to refrain from (i) engaging in a corporate opportunity in the same or similar lines of business in which we or our affiliates now engage or propose to engage or (ii) otherwise competing with us or our affiliates. In addition, to the fullest extent permitted by law, in the event that Blackstone or any non-employee director acquires knowledge of a potential transaction or other business opportunity which may be a corporate opportunity for itself or himself or its or his affiliates or for us or our affiliates, such person will have no duty to communicate or offer such transaction or business opportunity to us or any of our affiliates and they may take any such opportunity for themselves or offer it to another person or entity. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not renounce our interest in any business opportunity that is expressly offered to a non-employee director solely in his or her capacity as a director or officer of the Company. To the fullest extent permitted by law, no business opportunity will be deemed to be a potential corporate opportunity for us unless we would be permitted to undertake the opportunity under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, we have sufficient financial resources to undertake the opportunity and the opportunity would be in line with our business.

Limitations on Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors

The DGCL authorizes corporations to limit or eliminate the personal liability of directors to corporations and their stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of directors� fiduciary duties, subject to certain exceptions. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation includes a provision that eliminates the
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personal liability of directors for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except to the extent such exemption from liability or limitation thereof is not permitted under the DGCL. The effect of these provisions is to eliminate the rights of us and our stockholders, through stockholders� derivative suits on our behalf, to recover monetary damages from a director for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, including breaches resulting from grossly negligent behavior. However, exculpation does not apply to any director if the director has acted in bad faith, knowingly or intentionally violated the law, authorized illegal dividends or redemptions or derived an improper benefit from his or her actions as a director.

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that we must indemnify and advance expenses to our directors and officers to the fullest extent authorized by the DGCL. We also are expressly authorized to carry directors� and officers� liability insurance providing indemnification for our directors, officers and certain employees for some liabilities. We believe that these indemnification and advancement provisions and insurance are useful to attract and retain qualified directors and executive officers.

The limitation of liability, advancement and indemnification provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against directors for breach of their fiduciary duty. These provisions also may have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and officers, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. In addition, your investment may be adversely affected to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions.

We currently are party to indemnification agreements with certain of our directors and officers. These agreements require us to indemnify these individuals to the fullest extent permitted under Delaware law against liabilities that may arise by reason of their service to us, and to advance expenses incurred as a result of any proceeding against them as to which they could be indemnified. These agreements will require us to indemnify these individuals to the fullest extent permitted under Delaware law against liabilities that may arise by reason of their service to us, and to advance expenses incurred as a result of any proceeding against them as to which they could be indemnified.

There is currently no pending material litigation or proceeding involving any of our directors, officers or employees for which indemnification is sought.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Listing

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �CTLT�.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We and/or the selling stockholders, if applicable, may sell the shares of our common stock covered by this prospectus in any of the following ways (or in any combination):

� to or through underwriters or dealers;

� directly to one or more purchasers;

� through agents; or

� through a combination of any of these methods of sale.
Each time that we sell shares of our common stock covered by this prospectus, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will describe the method of distribution and set forth the terms and conditions of the offering of such shares, including:

� the name or names of any underwriters, dealers or agents and the amounts of shares underwritten or purchased by each of them;

� the offering price of the shares and the proceeds to us and/or the selling stockholders, if applicable, and any underwriting discounts, commissions, concessions or agency fees allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers;

� any options under which underwriters may purchase additional shares from us and/or the selling stockholders; and

� any securities exchange or market on which the shares may be listed or traded.
Any offering price and any discounts, commissions, concessions or agency fees allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed from time to time. We may determine the price or other terms of the shares of our common stock offered under this prospectus by use of an electronic auction. We will describe how any auction will determine the price or any other terms, how potential investors may participate in the auction and the nature of the obligations of the underwriter, dealer or agent in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We and/or the selling stockholders, if applicable, may distribute the shares from time to time in one or more transactions:

� at a fixed price or at prices that may be changed from time to time;

� at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;

� at prices relating to such prevailing market prices; or

� at negotiated prices.
Underwriters, dealers or any other third parties described above may offer and sell the offered shares from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. If underwriters or dealers are used in the sale of any shares, the shares will be acquired by the underwriters or dealers for their own account and may be resold from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. The shares may be either offered to the public through underwriting syndicates represented by managing underwriters, or directly by underwriters. Generally, the underwriters� obligations to purchase the shares will be subject to certain conditions precedent. The underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of the shares if they purchase any of the shares (other than any shares purchased upon exercise of any over-allotment option), unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement. We may use underwriters with whom we have a material relationship. We will describe the nature of any such relationship in the prospectus supplement, naming the underwriter or underwriters.
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We and/or the selling stockholders, if applicable, may sell the shares through agents from time to time. The prospectus supplement will name any agent involved in the offer or sale of the shares and any commissions paid to them. Generally, any agent will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of its appointment. We may engage in at the market offerings into an existing trading market in accordance with Rule 415(a)(4) under the Securities Act. We may authorize underwriters, dealers or agents to solicit offers by certain purchasers to purchase the shares from us at the public offering price set forth in the prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on a specified date in the future. These contracts will be subject only to those conditions set forth in the prospectus supplement, and the prospectus supplement will set forth any commissions to be paid for solicitation of these contracts. Any underwriters, broker-dealers and agents that participate in the distribution of the shares may be deemed to be �underwriters� as defined in the Securities Act. Any commissions paid or any discounts or concessions allowed to any such persons, and any profits they receive on resale of the shares, may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act. We will identify any underwriters or agents and describe their compensation in a prospectus supplement.

Offered shares may also be offered and sold, if so indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, in connection with a remarketing upon their purchase, in accordance with a redemption or repayment pursuant to their terms, or otherwise, by one or more marketing firms, acting as principals for their own accounts or as agents for us. Any remarketing firm will be identified and the terms of its agreements, if any, with us and its compensation will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Underwriters or agents may purchase and sell the shares in the open market. These transactions may include over-allotment, stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids.

Over-allotment involves sales in excess of the offering size, which creates a short position. Stabilizing transactions consist of bids or purchases for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the shares and are permitted so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum. Syndicate covering transactions involve the placing of any bid on behalf of the underwriting syndicate or the effecting of any purchase to reduce a short position created in connection with the offering. The underwriters or agents also may impose a penalty bid, which permits them to reclaim selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or certain dealers if they repurchase the shares in stabilizing or covering transactions. These activities may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the shares, which may be higher than the price that might otherwise prevail in the open market. These activities, if begun, may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on any exchange on which the shares are traded, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �CTLT�.

If at the time of any offering made under this prospectus a member of FINRA participating in the offering has a �conflict of interest� as defined in FINRA�s Rule 5121 (�Rule 5121�), that offering will be conducted in accordance with the relevant provisions of Rule 5121.

There can be no assurance that we will sell all or any of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus.

Agents, dealers and underwriters may be entitled to indemnification by us and the selling stockholders against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribution with respect to payments which the agents, dealers or underwriters may be required to make in respect thereof.

The specific terms of the lock-up provisions in respect of any given offering will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Unless we state otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the validity of the shares of common stock will be passed upon for us by Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP, New York, New York. An investment vehicle comprised of selected partners of Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP, members of their families, related persons and others owns an interest representing less than 1% of the capital commitments of funds affiliated with The Blackstone Group L.P.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements and schedule included in our 2015 Form 10-K, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. Our financial statements and schedule are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst  & Young LLP�s report given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus is a part of the registration statement on Form S-3 we filed with the SEC under the Securities Act and does not contain all the information set forth in the registration statement. Whenever a reference is made in this prospectus to any of our contracts, agreements or other documents, the reference may not be complete and you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement or the exhibits to the reports or other documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus for a copy of such contract, agreement or other document. Because we are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC�s website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC�s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room.

INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The rules of the SEC allow us to incorporate information into this prospectus by reference. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus. This prospectus incorporates by reference the documents listed below and all documents that we file with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus, from their respective filing dates:

� our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and Amendment No. 1 to such annual report on Form 10-K/A filed on November 3, 2015;

� our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended September 30, 2015, December 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016;

� our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed on September 16, 2015 (solely those portions that were incorporated by reference into Part III of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015);

� our Current Reports on Form 8-K, filed on July 30, 2015, October 30, 2015, November 3, 2015 (excluding information under Item 2.02 and Item 9.01), November 16, 2015 and April 29, 2016; and

� the description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on July 31, 2014, including all amendments and reports filed for the purpose of updating such description.
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Any statement made in this prospectus or in a document incorporated by reference into this prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus modifies or supersedes that statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

You can obtain any of the filings incorporated by reference into this prospectus through us or from the SEC through the SEC�s website at http://www.sec.gov. We will provide, without charge, to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this prospectus is delivered, upon written or oral request of such person, a copy of any or all of the reports and documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus. You should direct requests for those documents to:

Catalent, Inc.

14 Schoolhouse Road

Somerset, NJ 08873

Attn: Corporate Secretary

Tel.: (732) 537-6200

Email: CorpSec@catalent.com

Our reports and documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus may also be found in the �Investors� section of our website at www.catalent.com. Our website and the information contained in it or connected to it shall not be deemed to be incorporated into this prospectus or any registration statement of which it forms a part.
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